
 

Page 1 of 54 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 28, 2018 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes of November 14, 2018. 

Public Comments 

Public Hearing 

2. Rezoning – From A-1, Agricultural District to R-1, Residence District 

Location:  North end of Arbors Drive and west end of Richard Road 
Applicant:  Panther Farms, Owner; CGA Inc., Engineer 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Introduction and discussion. 
P&Z Action Needed:  Continue public hearing at the December 12th P&Z meeting. 

New Business 

3. Central Business District Overlay District - Design Review: Tea Cellar 

Location:  209 State Street 
Applicant: Justeen Hill, owner of the Tea Cellar 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Recommend Approval  
P&Z Action Needed: Review and make a Recommendation to City Council 

4. Planned Commercial District (PC-2) Site Plan Review: 936 Viking Outbuilding #1 

Location:  936 Viking Road, Outbuilding #1 
Applicant:  HI YIELD LLC, Owner; Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., Engineer 
Previous discussion:  None 
Recommendation:  Recommend Approval  
P&Z Action Needed:  Review and make a Recommendation to City Council 

5. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District - Site Plan Review: 2119 College Street 

Location:  2119 College Street, 925 W. 22nd Street, & 1003 W. 22nd Street 
Applicant:  CV Commercial, LLC., Owner; Slingshot Architects, Architect 
Previous discussion:  None  
Recommendation:  Introduction and discussion. 
Action Needed:  Provide direction, comments and continue the discussion at the December 
12th P&Z meeting. 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

1



 

Page 2 of 54 

Reminders: 
* December 12th and December 26th Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* December 3rd and December 17th City Council Meetings 

  

2



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

November 14, 2018 
City Hall Council Chambers 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, November 
14, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. The 
following Commission members were present: Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, and 
Wingert. Hartley and Saul were absent. Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager, 
David Sturch, Planner III, Shane Graham, Planner II, and Iris Lehmann, Planner I, were also present. 
 
1.) Chair Oberle noted the Minutes from the October 10 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Giarusso made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Mr. Holst seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, 
Oberle and Wingert), and 0 nays.  

 
 Chair Oberle also noted the Minutes from the October 24 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Giarusso made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Mr. Wingert seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, 
Leeper, Oberle and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
2.) The first item of business was the Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat. Chair Oberle 

introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He explained that the 
item was introduced in September and since then the developer and engineer have been 
working together with adjacent property owners to create a new design for the plat and 
stormwater runoff. The property is at the north end of Lakeshore Drive and rezoning of the 
area is going through the approval process with City Council. He explained that approximately 
9 acres of the plat are in the floodplain, and contains significant tree stands, steep slopes and 
meandering streams. He displayed renderings of the existing conditions and proposed 
stormwater and explained the plans for the plat. Staff recommends approval of the preliminary 
plat. 

 
 Mr. Wingert noted that he will abstain from the item.  
 
 Adam Daters, Clapsaddle-Garber Engineers, the developer of the project spoke to the design 

of the subdivision, specifically the stormwater management system to handle stormwater 
conveyance.  

 
 Jim Hancock, Lakewood Hills addition, complimented and recognized that the developer and 

the engineer have done a great job of working with the neighbors and addressing their 
concerns. He feels that the design will benefit the issues. He noted that the existing storm 
sewer system in the neighboring subdivision is inadequate, but realizes that is not the 
developer’s responsibility, and hopes that the city will help address the issue. 

 
 Tammy Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, apologized for her harsh words for Mr. Wingert. 
 
 Mr. Leeper stated that he appreciates the way that everyone worked together to address the 

concerns. Mr. Daters agreed and that he felt it was a very positive experience. Mr. Holst 
agreed as well. 

 

3



 2 

  
 
 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve. Mr. Leeper seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper and Oberle), 1 
abstention (Wingert) and 0 nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a Central Business District Overlay 

Design Review for Lark Brewing. Chair Oberle introduced the item and Ms. Lehmann provided 
background information. She explained that the property is located at 312 Main Street and is 
being renovated for a new brewing company, and it includes interior renovations and an 
overhead door along the back of the building. As the property is located in the Central 
Business District, the proposed opening is considered a substantial improvement. The 
proposed overhead door will be used for bringing in brewery equipment and daily delivery and 
shipping of products. Ms. Lehmann discussed the proposed work and the design review 
criteria and noted that staff feels that all elements have been met and recommends approval. 

 
 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve. Ms. Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle and 
Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
4.) The Commission then considered a College Hill Overlay Design Review for Icon Donut. Chair 

Oberle introduced the item and Ms. Lehmann provided background information. The property 
is located at 917 W. 23rd Street and is proposed to house Icon Donut. Interior renovations, a 
projecting sign and awnings are proposed as part of the project. Any major improvements to 
the exterior of buildings in the College Hill Overlay District require Planning and Zoning review. 
Ms. Lehmann provided renderings of the proposed sign and awning. Staff feels that the 
proposal meets the requirements of the District and recommend approval. 

 
 Mr. Arntson made a motion to approve. Mr. Wingert seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle and 
Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
5.) The next item of business was a Business Research District Site plan for Rabo AgriFinance. 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background information. He 
explained that the proposed site is located along Technology Parkway east of Hudson Road 
and west of Chancellor Drive. It is an approximately 3 acre site and City Council approved a 
Development Agreement with the property owner, Six Kids, LLC, to build the building. It is 
proposed to build a 17,000 sq. ft., one story building for Rabo AgriFinance. He provided a 
rendering of elements of the site, including entrance, parking area, trash enclosure and 
detention basin. He also displayed a rendering of the building from front, rear west and east 
side elevations, and discussed the materials being proposed. Mr. Graham showed the 
landscaping plan and signage plan. Staff recommends approval of the site plan. 

 
 Dan Levi, Levi Architecture, explained that the project is straightforward. The concept is similar 

to the building next door and made himself available for any questions. Mr. Wingert and Mr. 
Arntson stated that it looked like a good project for the area. 

 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Mr. Wingert seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle and 
Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
6.)  Ms. Howard noted the changes that will be coming with the new software being used for 

packets and stated that if there are any questions, the IT department would be happy to help. 
 

4



 3 

 
7.) As there were no further comments, Mr. Holst made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Leeper seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, 
Holst, Leeper, Oberle and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 
 

5



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: November 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request – Prairie West II 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Single Family Residential 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms, Owner; CGA Inc., Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

40.62 acres at the North end of Arbors Drive and the West end of Richard 
Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted a request to rezone 40.62 acres of land off of the North end of 
Arbors Drive and the West end of Richard Road from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential. The 
area being rezoned consists of two different parcels of land, see areas outlined in red in the map 
below. The rezoning will allow for the development of single family homes similar to the 
neighboring subdivisions of the Prairie West and Prairie Winds developments.  
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned agricultural 
since the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 
1970. The land is surrounded by R-1, Single 
Unit Residential zoning to the South and East 
and MU, Mixed Use Residential District to the 
Northeast. The owner wishes to rezone the 
land for future residential development. The 
other half of the northern parcel was rezoned 
to MU in July of 2016. The rezoning of these 
properties must be carefully considered by 
evaluating the characteristics of the land and 
surrounding properties. This staff report will 
outline a number of these elements in order to 
have a firm understanding of the future use of 
this property. 

6



ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development when municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the land is ripe for development according to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Before land can be developed it must be zoned appropriately, which will 
then allow for platting, as necessary, and construction.  
 
As previously mentioned, this 40.62 acre property is surrounded by residential zoning. Aldrich 
Elementary School is being constructed directly to the south. The property to the north is zoned 
for a future mixed use development and to the east is the Prairie West 7th Addition residential 
subdivision. The land to the west is zoned A-1, Agricultural, and consists of farmland and the 
floodplain along Dry Run Creek.  
 
Zoning considerations involve evaluation of the following four criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this and the surrounding properties as Low Density 
Residential and Greenways/Floodplain. Low density residential emphasizes single family 
detached development. Typical densities range from 1 to 4 units per acre. The requested 
R-1 Zoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Map. Development of the property will 
provide additional residential housing in proximity to the new elementary school.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2) Are areas of this site in the Floodplain? Are there 
environmental sensitive areas that need to be 
protected? 
As both of these lots have been farmed the 
topography of the land is relatively flat. Both 
properties border the floodplain boundary (see 
image to the right). The floodway is indicated by 
red hashing, the blue shaded area represents the 
boundaries of the 100 year flood plain, and the 
orange shaded area represents the boundaries of 
the 500 year flood plain. The properties subject to 
this rezoning do not fall within the floodplain. 

Future Land Use Map with Categories 

7



There does not appear to be any environmentally sensitive areas on these sites that 
need to be protected. This will be confirmed when the land is subdivided for 
development. If any sensitive areas are found during the required environmental 
assessment they will be protected.  
 

3) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer and water services?  
These developments, as well as any development in the city will be provided with full 
municipal services. Sanitary sewer and water are readily available to the site.  
Connections to sanitary sewer and water service are available from Arbors Drive to the 
South and Richard Road to the East. There will also be future connections to Greenhill 
Road to the north as development continues in this area. In order to further develop the 
land to the west of the proposed site, the necessary infrastructure (i.e. sanitary sewer and 
water) will need to be extended to the western boundaries of this site. 
 

4) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
Development of the property under R-1 Zoning will be possible by extending Arbors Drive 
from the south, which will also extend north as part of the West Village Subdivision to 
provide a street connection to Greenhill Road. Richard Road will be extended west to 
provide access to a future subdivision from the east. Any future subdivision will need to 
provide a pattern of streets that connects with the existing street network in this part of 
the community.   

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposal 
and have no comments that need to be addressed on the proposed item.  

 
The rezoning of this property would allow for the continued development of residential lots. A 
notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on November 20, 2018 regarding this 
rezoning request.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction and 
Public Hearing 
11/28/2018 

 
 
 
 

Vote 
12/12/18 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the request to rezone the 
40.62 acres from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public. 
 
Attachments: 
Location Map 
Rezoning Exhibit 
Letter of intent  

 

8



Dry
Run

Creek

(SW)

Aldrich
Elementary

School
Arbors Dr

Richard Rd

Flynn Dr

Reese Rd

Vera Way

Ironwood Dr

Ed
en

 W
ay

Leigh Ln

Do
na

ld
D r

Ashworth Dr

Blythe Blvd

Andy Ave

Erik Rd

HorseshoeDr

Vera Way (Planned)

Co
he

nC
t(P

lan
ne

d)

Greenhill Rd

University Ave

R-1

R-1

C-2R-4 C-1

RP R-3

A-1

MU

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
November 28, 2018

Rezone 40.62 acres from A-1 to R-1
Panther Farms, LLC

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra iriePkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rs e
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

9



10



 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 

16 East Main Street ● Marshalltown, Iowa  50158 ● Telephone 641-752-6701 ● Fax 641-752-2849 
Toll Free 800-542-7981 ● www.cgaconsultants.com 

 

October 18, 2018 
 
Planning Department 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
 

RE: Prairie West 2 Subdivision Rezoning 

 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of Panther Farms, LLC, we would like to submit a rezoning application for parcel 
8914-27-226-002 and part of 8914-22-478-004 as indicated on the rezoning exhibit. This land 
will be used as the next phase of the Prairie West subdivision and consist of a number of single-
family homes to be built at a later date.  
 
At this time the application is only to rezone the property to R1 from A1 and does not include 
platting or other planning efforts.   
 
Please contact me at 641-752-6701, or stroskey@cgaconsultants.com if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

 
Stephen Troskey       
Planner - Project Manager 

11



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: November 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Design review of a property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Design review for a new wall sign and awnings for 209 State Street 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Justeen Hill, owner of Tea Cellar 

LOCATION: 
 

209 State Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is requesting a façade review for a new wall sign and awnings at 209 State Street 
to advertise the building’s new tenant, Tea Cellar. This property is within the Central Business 
District. See images of the existing and proposed façades below.   

 
Existing storefront      Existing side 

 
  

              
     
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed side 
 

Proposed storefront 

12



BACKGROUND 
This item requires review by the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council since this 
property is located within the Central Business District (Section 29-168). The downtown district 
requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial improvement” to an 
exterior façade, including a color or material change. A substantial improvement to properties in 
the CBD Overlay is defined in Section 29-186(c) and reads as follows: 
 

“Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
 

ANALYSIS 
This property is located in a C-3, commercial zoning district, and falls within the Central 
Business District Overlay. As noted above, all substantial improvements to structures within the 
overlay district shall be reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council. The 
following is an evaluation of the project: 
 
1. Proportion: The proportions of the building are not being altered. This criterion does not apply. 
 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The roof of the building is not being altered. This criterion 

does not apply. 
 
3. Pattern: The surfaces and openings of this structure will remain the same. This criterion does 

not apply. 
 
4. Building Composition: The composition of the building will remain the same. This criterion 

does not apply. 
 
5. Window and transparency: The size, proportion and type of windows on the building are not 

changing. This criterion does not apply. 
 
6. Materials and texture: The applicant is proposing to wrap a 2 foot wide blue "awning skirt" 

around the existing metal/wood awning on the storefront as well as add awnings over 
the four windows facing the neighboring parking lot to the south. The applicant will 
use a blue outdoor fabric for these improvements. The use of outdoor fabric is 
consistent with other awning materials in the district. This criterion is met. 

 
7. Color: The colors of the exterior walls and roof of the building will not change. The applicant 

is proposing to use a blue fabric for the awnings that will act as an accent to the 
building. This criterion is met. 

 
8. Architectural features: The architectural features of the building are remaining the same. This 

criterion does not apply. 
 

13



9. Building Entries: The entry to the building will not change. This criterion does not apply. 
 
10. Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting. This criterion does not apply 

for this review 
 
11. Signage: The applicant is proposing to add a wall sign to the 

storefront. The sign will be a laser cut-out of 12 gauge cold-
rolled steel with a clear seal coat to help prevent rusting. The 
wall sign will be approximately 4 feet wide and 6 feet high (24 
sqft). The sign will not detract from the architectural features of 
the building and will cover approximately 2% of the storefront. 
Wall signs are not permitted to exceed 10% of the area of the 
storefront. The area of the 209 State Street storefront is 
approximately 1,035 sqft (69 feet wide x 15 feet tall). This 
criterion is met.  

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
11/28/2018 

 

   
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed awnings and 
wall sign for 209 State Street. 
 
Attachments:   Letter of intent from business owner 
  

14



Iris, 
 
Thank you for your information and for returning my call. 
 
The property address Tea Cellar will be occupying is 209 State Street, Cedar Falls, owned by 
Dave Farris; Dave is copied on this email. 
 
The signage I would like to display on the front of the building (facing State Street) would be 
fashioned by Kryton Engineering.  It is a laser cut-out of 12 gauge cold-rolled steel with a clear 
seal coat applied after it is cut so the outside elements will not rust it.  The center tea cut will 
be cut out and reattached, painted blue, to give it a 3D effect.  Four to six mounting holes will 
be used around the entire edge in order to fasten it to the building; spacers will also be used to 
offset the sign approximately 1" from the wall.  The dimensions are approximately 4' wide and 
6' high. 
 
The blue "awning skirt" will be 2' high and wrap around the existing metal/wood awning.  Fabric 
will be used. 
 
The side awnings are approximately 44" high by 36" in diameter.  There are four windows 
facing south (parking lot).  Fabric. 
 
Tea Cellar currently occupies space at 208 Main Street (below Basket of Daisies) and has been 
at that location since November 3, 2016; my lease expires December 31st. 
 
I am happy to drop off the processing fee of $50 indicated in your email; is that workable? 
 
I understand my deadline for submission is Monday, November 12th, and that review by the 
P&Z Committee is scheduled for November 28th and possible City Council meeting on 
December 3rd. 
 
Do let me know if you are in need of anything further from me.  Thank you. 
 
Steepingly yours,  
Justeen Hill 

 
www.TeaCellarOnMain.com 

15



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: November 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: PC-2 District Site Plan Review – 936 Viking Road 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a PC-2 Planned Commercial District Site Plan for a new 
8,088 square foot retail building. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

HI YIELD LLC, Owner; Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

936 Viking Road 
 

 

  
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to construct an 8,088 
square foot commercial building (in 
blue outline to the right) which will 
provide room for three tenants. The 
overall development plan for the 
property includes a 55,000 square 
foot gym/retail building, and four 
commercial buildings totaling 
approximately 30,000 square feet.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The property was rezoned by the City 
Council from A-1 Agricultural District 
to PC-2 Planned Commercial District 
on September 19, 2016. A site plan 
for just the gymnasium/retail building was approved by the City Council on December 15, 2016 
after a unanimous recommendation of approval from the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
During the review of the gymnasium/retail building site plan in 2016, a general design of the 4 
outbuildings was presented, however those buildings were not part of the original site plan 
approval. A site plan was presented for Outbuilding #3 at the northeast corner of the property, 
and was approved by City Council on August 21, 2017. Then, on October 16, 2017, a revised 
site plan for the gymnasium/retail building was approved by City Council, which added 
approximately 10,000 square feet of building area and added a parking area behind the building. 
 

16



ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned PC-2, Planned Commercial District. The PC-2 District is a predominantly 
commercial project containing retail and general service facilities on larger tracts of land that is 
designed and improved in accordance with a comprehensive project plan and developmental 
procedures agreement. It is further the purpose of these regulations to encourage high 
standards of building architecture and site planning which will foster commercial development 
that maximizes pedestrian convenience, comfort and pleasure. 
 
As indicated in the Background section, several site plan reviews on this property have already 
been approved. The overall development plan for the property shows a total of five buildings; 
one has already been completed, and one is currently under construction. This approval is for 
the third of five buildings. A detailed site plan review of each building when it is proposed to be 
constructed is required to ensure that the development site satisfies a number of standards.  
Details such as building design and location, parking, landscaping, open space, signage, 
dumpster location, and other similar criteria are reviewed to ensure orderly and quality 
development in the PC-2 Planned Commercial District. 
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements: 
 
1) Proposed Use: The 8,080 square foot retail/professional office building is a permitted use in 

the PC-2 District. Use permitted. 
 
2) Setbacks: The setbacks apply to the building, parking lot and signage. The PC-2 District 

normally requires a 30-foot setback around the perimeter of the "district”. The PC-2 District 
also states that for areas less than 10 acres in size, that the setback area may be reduced 
to 20’, subject to review and approval from the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council. The developer did ask that the 30 foot open space buffer setback be reduced to 
20 feet in width, which was approved by City Council.  

 
The proposed building is located 35 feet from the front property line and 38 feet from the 
side property line, which meet the 20 foot minimum buffer requirements. The parking area 
is also shown 35 feet from the front property line as well. Building and Parking Area 
setbacks are satisfied. 

 
3) Parking: Retail stores over 2,000 square feet require 4.5 stall per 1,000 square feet of 

gross floor area, or in this case 28 stalls. (7,280 SF/1,000 x 4.5 = 32.76 stalls). The 
proposed building will have room for 3 tenants, however they may not all be retail based 
and instead may have a professional office use or two. Retail uses require more parking 
than professional office uses, so staff wanted to error on the side of caution by calling the 
entire building a retail use for parking purposes. Although the entire development may 
utilize one large parking lot, the developer may in the future divide the buildings onto their 
own lot. The plan indicates that, if divided, 34 parking stalls would be maintained on the 
site. Parking requirements are satisfied for this use. 

 
4) Open Space: Open green space must be provided on site. The ordinance requires 10% of 

the total development site excluding the required setback area. In this case the lot contains 
approximately 9 acres of land (400,000 ft²). When the perimeter setbacks are excluded  
(20-foot minimum), approximately 61,000 square feet can be deducted from the total: 
400,000-61,000=339,000 x 0.10 = 33,900 square feet open green space must be provided 
on site. The property has approximately 298,103 square feet of open space remaining, 
which far exceeds the minimum open space requirement. Open green space satisfied. 

 

17



5) Landscaping: The PC-2 District requires landscape plantings at the rate of 0.02 points per 
square foot of the total development site excluding the setback areas described above 
(0.02 x 339,000 ft²) = 6,780 basic site landscaping points. These points can be made up 
with any combination of trees, conifers and shrubbery and distributed throughout the site, 
parking areas and along the street. To calculate the number of street tree points, the 
formula is 0.75 points per linear foot of street frontage. In this case, the frontage along 
Viking Road for this parcel is 220 feet. This would equate to 165 street tree points. The 
plan for this portion of the development shows 9 street trees, with a total of 360 points.  

 
In addition to these points, landscaping must also be provided to satisfy “parking lot 
landscaping.” The parking lot calculation must be “added” to the “site/street tree 
landscaping” number (6,780) to arrive at a total landscaping requirement for the property. 
The parking area landscaping requirement is one tree for every 15 parking stalls or 2,500 
square feet of hard surface parking area. If the one tree for every 15 stalls ratio is applied, 
the total tree planting for this portion of the parking lot would be 34/15 stalls = 3 trees. The 
plan for this portion of the development shows 8 parking lot trees. 
 
A landscaping plan for the overall site was submitted when the gymnasium building went 
through the site plan review process. All requirements were met at that time. For this 
portion of the development, the landscaping plan appears to be similar to what was 
submitted for the overall development and for the completed outbuilding #3, with trees 
located along the street, trees within the parking lot, and trees located around the building. 
Landscape Plan is acceptable.  

 
6) Sidewalks: A Sidewalk is identified along the Viking Road street frontage. A sidewalk is 

also shown that connects this building and the other proposed building adjacent to the 
south to the public sidewalk along Viking Road. A sidewalk was also shown connecting 
Outbuilding #3 which was recently completed, to the sidewalk along Viking Road. With this 
site plan approval, both buildings along the Viking Road street frontage will be complete, so 
the sidewalk along Viking Road and the sidewalks that lead to both buildings will need to 
be installed. Sidewalk plan is acceptable, and will be installed in conjunction with the 
construction of this building. 

 
7) Building Design: The proposed building will be constructed with a mixture of rock faced 

block (gray), Cumaru wood shiplap siding, glass windows and doors, and two tones of 
corrugated metal paneling (silver and charcoal). Wall signage will also be located above 
each doorway. This building design is very similar to Outbuilding #3, which was completed 
earlier this year. Overall Building Design is acceptable. 

 
 

8) Trash Dumpsters: The dumpster enclosure will be located closer to the gymnasium building 
to the south. A dumpster enclosure plan was submitted when the gymnasium building was 
proposed that included a 6’ split face block wall with a slated gate for access. Dumpster 
enclosure plan is acceptable.   

Front Design of Building 

18



 
9) Storm Water Management: There are two underground storm water collection areas 

located under the parking lot in front of Outbuilding #1 and Outbuilding #3. These detention 
basins release the water into the storm sewer located along Viking Road. Also, there is a 
storm water detention area located to the southwest of the gymnasium building. Water from 
around the gymnasium building and areas south of the gymnasium building will go to this 
detention pond. This overall storm water management plan was reviewed and approved by 
the Engineering Division during the site plan review of the gymnasium building in 2016. 

 
10) Lighting Plan: While not required by the PC-2 District 

requirements, a general lighting plan has been 
submitted and appears to be satisfactory. The 
applicant has provided information showing the 
location of 9 proposed light poles to be installed in 
front of the building and within the parking lot. The 
lighting fixtures will consist of LED die-cast 
aluminum box downlights.  

 
 
11) Signage: The PC-2 District permits wall signs to cover 20% of the surface area of any one 

wall space. However, no more than two wall faces can be utilized for signage in the PC-2 
District. Wall signage is identified on the front side of the building over each tenant space 
entry.  One main freestanding entrance sign is allowed adjacent to the adjoining major 
thoroughfare. Said sign shall not exceed 20 feet in height and 200 square feet in area. A 
freestanding entrance sign was shown on the original site plan submittal for the 
gymnasium building. Signage requirements appear to be met, but will be verified at 
the time of sign permit application. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, have few comments on the 
proposed site plan. All basic utility services are available to the site. The developer is required to 
provide all utility services to the building and must coordinate those improvements with CFU 
personnel. 
 
As a condition of approving the occupancy permit for Outbuilding #3 in June of 2018, the 
developer was to provide a lighting plan to the City, as the parking lot did not have any lighting 
at the time. The developer has installed 2 light poles on the site to provide lighting to the 
premises to ensure the safe entrance and exit to the property by the public.  
 
The City Engineering Division has had comments regarding their Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the site. A number of deficiencies were noted by City staff during 
several site visits over the past several months. However, those items have been addressed by 
the developer. The developer and contractor for the site will need to address any changes that 
occur as construction continues on the site with continued maintenance, weekly inspections, 
seeding during appropriate times, and use of SWPPP approved stabilization techniques. In the 
future, the City will require that the developer obtain an individual SWPPP permit for each of the 
remaining buildings on the site prior to construction to help maintain control of the site during the 
duration of the remaining construction on the site.   
 
Also, when the sanitary sewer service was extended to this site from the existing sanitary sewer 
main located on the City-owned property to the west (Prairie Lakes Park), an easement for that 
private line that is located on City property was never established. That easement agreement 

19



has been drafted and reviewed by City Attorney Kevin Rogers, and will be proceeding to City 
Council for approval. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The introduction of this site plan is for discussion and public comment purposes. If the P&Z 
Commission is comfortable with the submitted site plan, it is their decision on whether to forward 
for additional P&Z Commission review on 12/12 or to approve the site plan on 11/28. The 
Community Development Department has reviewed this site plan and would recommend 
approval, subject to the following comments: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
11/28/2018 

 
 

  
 
 

20



N
Pra

irie
La

ke

S Pra
irie

Lak
e

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Prairie
Lakes Park

CFU
Solar

Garden

Danish Dr

Enterprise Dr

Nordic Dr

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Savannah Park Rd

We
stm

ins
ter

Dr
Viking Rd

M-1

M-2

M-1-P

R-2

A-1

PC-2

University
of Northern

Iowa

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Black
Hawk
Park

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rHe i g
hts

Dr

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
November 28, 2018

936 Viking Road - PC-2 District
Site Plan Review 21



22



23



VIKING RETAIL
11/15/16

PERSPECTIVE 04

 

Copyright R. Wayne Williamson, AIA

Date: 7/2/18

A1
Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Cover Sheet
 

Drawn By Checked By

RWW RWW

CAD File Name
Building 1 Plan

Project Number

018019

Da
te

DK
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
TH

IS
 P

LA
N,

 IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
TH

E 
DE

SI
GN

AN
D 

CO
NC

EP
T,

 IS
 T

HE
 P

RO
PE

RT
Y 

O
F

R.
 W

AY
NE

 W
IL

LI
AM

SO
N,

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
AN

D 
IS

 P
RO

TE
CT

ED
 U

ND
ER

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
LA

W
. U

NA
UT

OR
IZ

ED
 U

SE
IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

OH
IB

IT
ED

.

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
  
  

20
18

BY
 R

. W
AY

NE
 W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N,
 A

RC
HI

TE
CT

A 
Ne

w
 F

ac
ili

ty
 a

t:

93
6 V

ik
in

g 
Ro

ad
Bu

ild
in

g 
#1

Ce
da

r F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 R
ev

is
io

n

60
4 C

la
y 

St
re

et
, C

ed
ar

 F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

31
9-

76
8-

72
35

R.
 W

ay
ne

 W
ill

ia
m

so
n,

 A
rc

hi
te

ct

PROJECT DATA / CODE INFORMATION

PROJECT: 936 VIKING ROAD, BUILDING #1
GOVERNING CODES: 2015 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE

2015 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE
2014 NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE
2015 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE
2015 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE 

ZONING:

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: II-B, NON-COMBUSTIBLE / NON-PROTECTED

BUILDING HEIGHT: 1 STORY / 22'-0"

OCCUPANCY GROUP: M (MERCHANTILE)

BUILDING AREA: 8,000 SQUARE FEET;  12,5000 ALLOWABLE

SPRINKLER SYSTEM: NONE; NOT REQUIRED

OCCUPANCY LOAD: 134

GENERAL NOTES: MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL AND PLUMBING DESIGNS TO BE DESIGN BUILD. DESIGN/BUILD 
CONTRACTORS TO PROVIDE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CEDAR FALLS BUILDING
INSPECTION SERVICES PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

TENANT FINISH AND FIT OUT TO BE ACCOMPLISHED BY INDIVIDUAL TENANTS UNDER SEPERATE
PERMIT.

CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL A KNOX BOX WITH FINAL LOCATION COORDINATED WITH CEDAR
FALLS FIRE RESCUE.

MINIMUM SIZE FIRE EXTINGUISHER OF 2A-10BC TO BE INSTALLED WITHIN EACH TENANT SPACE
UNDER TENANT FIT OUT.

A NEW FACILITY AT:

936 VIKING ROAD
BUILDING #1

CEDAR FALLS, IA

Hu
ds

on
 R

d.

Hudson Rd.

Viking Rd.Viking Rd.
Ch

an
ce

llo
r D

r.

Savanah Park Rd.

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Dr

.

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 D
r.

E. Viking Rd.

Hw
y. 

58
Hw

y. 
58

Hwy. 58

No
rd

ic 
Dr

.

0 

100 ft 

200 ft 

300 ft 500 ft 

400 ft 

LOCATION MAP

Project 
Site

CERTIFICATION:
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PORTION OF THIS TECHNICAL 
SUBMISSION  DESCRIBED BELOW WAS PREPARED BY ME OR 
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND RESPOSIBLE CHARGE. I AM 
A DULY REGISTERED ARCHITECT UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
OF IOWA. IOWA REGISTRATION NUMBER #05707

NAME: R. WAYNE WILLIAMSON

PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL.

A1, A2, A3, A4,  DATE ISSUED: 

SEAL:

SHEET INDEX

ARCHITECTURAL SHEETS

A1 COVER SHEET
A2 FLOOR PLAN
A3 ELEVATIONS
A4 REFL'D. CLNG. PLAN/ROOF PLAN/DOOR SCHED.
A5 WALL SECTIONS

PROJECT TEAM
CLIENT: HI YIELD, LLC

ARCHITECT: WAYNE WILLIAMSON, AIA
CEDAR FALLS, IA
319.939.3846

CIVIL ENG.: CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC.
MARSHALLTOWN, IA
641.752.6701

STRUCTURAL ENG.:

MECH/ELEC/PLBG ENG.: DESIGN/BUILD

GENERAL CONTRACTOR: DAHLSTROM REAL ESTATE

A.B. Anchor Bolt
A.D. Area Drain
Abv. Above
Adj. Adjustable
A.F.F. Above Finish Floor
AHU Air Handling Unit
ATG Adjust to Grade
A/C Air Conditioner
Acc. Accessible
Acous. Acoustical
Act. Actual
Aggr. Aggregate
Al/Gl Aluminum & Glass
Alt . Alternate
Alum. Aluminum
Anch. Anchor
Anod. Anodized
Asph. Asphalt
Auto Automatic
B.C. Brick Course
B.L. Borrowlight
Bd. Board
Bet. Between
Bldg. Building
Blk. Block
Blkg. Blocking
Bm. Beam
Brg. Bearing
Brk. Brick
Brkt. Bracket
Bsmt. Basement
Btm. Bottom
Cab. Cabinet
Cant. Cantilever
C.B. Catch Basin
C.C. Center to Center
Cer. Ceramic
C.E.T. Curb End Tapor
CG Corner Guard
Ch. Chord
CH Ceiling Height
CJ Control Joint
Cl. Clear
Clg. Ceiling
Clo. Closet
CMU Concrete Masonry Unit
Cntr Counter
CP Ceramic Pavers
C.O. Clean Out
Col Column
Comp. Composition
Conc. Concrete
Conf. Conference
Config. Configuration
Cont. Continuous
Contr. Contractor
Cor. Corner
Corr. Corridor
CR Carpet
Csmt. Casement
CT Ceramic Tile
CUH Cabinet Unit Heater
D. Dryer
Dbl. Double
D. H. Double Hung
Dia. Diameter
Dim. Dimension
Dk. Deck
Disp. Disposal
Dn. Down
DS Downspout
Dtl. Detail
D.U. Drive-up
DW Dishwasher
Dwg Drawing

E Employees
Ea. Each
EC Electrical Contractor
EIFS Exterior Insulation Finish System
EJ Expansion Joint
Elev. Elevation/Elevator
Emer. Emergency
Eng. Engineering
EP Electrical Panel
Eq. Equal
Equip. Equipment
Equiv. Equivalent
EW Each Way
Exist. Existing
Exp. Expansion
Ext. Exterior
F Female
F/ Face
F/A Fresh Air
FCG Full Height Corner Guard
FCU Fan Coil Unit
F.D. Floor Drain
Fdn. Foundation
FEB Fire Extinguisher Bracket
FEC Fire Extiguisher Cabinet
FF Finish Floor
FH Fire Hydrant
FHC Fire Hose Cabinet
Fin. Finished
Fixt. Fixture
Fl. Floor
Flr. Floor
FP Fireproofing
F.P. Fireplace
FS Full Size
FT Fire Treated
Ft. Foot/Feet
Ftg. Footing
Furn. Furnace
Ga. Gauge
Galv. Galvanized
G.C. General Contractor
Gen. General
Gl. Glass
Gr. Ground
Gran. Granular
Gyp. Gypsum
H.C. Heating Contractor
Hdr. Header
H.M. Hollow Metal
Horiz. Horizontal
HP High Point
Hr. Hour
HR Hand Rail
Hse. House
Ht. Height
I.D. Inside Diameter
Inc. Include/Including
Insul. Insulation
Int. Interior
Inv. Invert
Isol. Isolation
Jan. Janitor
Jct. Junction
Jt. Joint
K.D. Knock Down
Kit. Kitchen
K.S. Knee Space
Lam. Laminate
Lav. Lavoratory
LF Lineal Feet
Lg. Long
Lin. Linen
L.I.S. Lawn Irrigation System
Liv. Living
LP Low Point
LVL Laminated Veneer Lumber

Abbreviations:

M Men
Mas. Masonry
Max. Maximum
M.C. Mechanical Contractor
M.E. Match Existing
Mech. Mechanical
Med. Cab. Medicine Cabinet
Memb. Member
Mfr. Manufacturer
M.H. Man Hole
MHO Magnetic Hold Open
Min. Minimum
Misc. Miscellaneous
Mk. Mark
ML Metal Lath
M.O. Masonry Opening
Mtd. Mounted
N.I.C. Not in Contract
No. Number
Nom. Nominal
N.T.S. Not to Scale
O.C. On Center
O.D. Outside Diameter
O.F. Overflow Drain
O.H. Overhead/Opposite Hand
Off. Office
Opng. Opening
Opp. Opposite
O.S. Outside
Part. Partition
Part'n Partition
Part. Bd. Particle Board
Pass. Passage
PB Particle Board
P.C. Plumbing Contractor
Pict. Picture
Pl. Plate
P. Lam. Plastic Laminate
Plas. Plastic
Plbm. Plumbing
Plwd. Plywood
Pnl. Panel
Pol. Polished
Pr. Pair
Proj. Projection
Prop. Property
PTB Plaster Terminal Bead
Ptd. Painted
PTD Paper Towel Dispenser
Pub. Public
Pvmt. Pavement
R. Radius
R/A Return Air
Rad. Radius
Rec. Recessed
R.D. Roof Drain
Ref. Refrigerator/Reference
Reinf. Reinforced
Req'd. Required
Res. Rescue
Ret. Return
Rf. Roof
RHP Rolled Paper Holder
RIO Rough-in Only
Rm. Room
R.O. Rough Opening
RTU Roof Top Unit
R/W Right of Way
San. Sanitary
S.C. Security Equipment Contractor
Sched. Schedule
SCR Shower Curtain Rod
SD Sound Deadening
Sect. Section

SGT Structural Glazed Tile
Sht. Sheet
Shtg. Sheathing
Sim. Similar
SND Sanitary Napkin Disposal
Spec. Specification
Sq. Square
SS Stainless Steel
SSCG Stainless Steel Corner Guard
Std. Standard
Ster. Sterilizer
Stl. Steel
Stor. Storage
Struct. Structural
Susp. Suspended
SV Sheet Vinyl
Sw Bd Switch Board
T Toilet/Tread/Thermostat
T/ Top of
TBR To Be Removed
T/C Top of Concrete
T&G Tongue and Groove
Tel. Telephone
Temp. Temporary
Thk. Thick/Thickness
Thres. Threshold
Tlt. Toilet
Trans. Transom
TW/BW Top of Wall/Bottom of Wall
Typ. Typical
UC Undercounter
U.C. Utility Contractor
UCR Under Counter Refrigerator
UIP Use in Place
Unex. Unexcavated
UNO Unless Noted Otherwise
U.P. Utilipty Pole
Urin. Urinal
Util. Utilities
VB Vapor Barrier/Vinyl Base
VC Vinyl Composition
VIF Verify in Field
VTR Vent Through Roof
Vent. Ventilate
Vert. Vertical
Vest. Vestibule
W Wide/Women
W. Washer
w/ With
w/o Without
WC Water Closet
WD Window Dimension
Wd. Wood
Wdw. Window
W.H. Water Heater
WP Work Point
WR Water Resistant
Wsct. Wainscot
Wt. Weight
Wtg. Waiting 
W.W.M. Welded Wire Mesh

24



 

Copyright R. Wayne Williamson, AIA

Date: 7/2/18

A2
Sheet Number

Sheet Name

FLOOR PLAN
 

Drawn By Checked By

RWW RWW

CAD File Name
Building 1 Plan

Project Number

018019

Da
te

DK
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
TH

IS
 P

LA
N,

 IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
TH

E 
DE

SI
GN

AN
D 

CO
NC

EP
T,

 IS
 T

HE
 P

RO
PE

RT
Y 

O
F

R.
 W

AY
NE

 W
IL

LI
AM

SO
N,

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
AN

D 
IS

 P
RO

TE
CT

ED
 U

ND
ER

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
LA

W
. U

NA
UT

OR
IZ

ED
 U

SE
IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

OH
IB

IT
ED

.

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
  
  

20
18

BY
 R

. W
AY

NE
 W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N,
 A

RC
HI

TE
CT

A 
Ne

w
 F

ac
ili

ty
 a

t:

93
6 V

ik
in

g 
Ro

ad
Bu

ild
in

g 
#1

Ce
da

r F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 R
ev

is
io

n

60
4 C

la
y 

St
re

et
, C

ed
ar

 F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

31
9-

76
8-

72
35

R.
 W

ay
ne

 W
ill

ia
m

so
n,

 A
rc

hi
te

ct

GENERAL NOTES
1. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS ETC, PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION AND 

SHALL MAKE ANY 'MINOR' REVISIONS NECESSARY AS FIELD CONDITIONS, PERMIT, PROVIDED THE INTENDED 
PURPOSE OF THE ENTIRE PROJECT AND THE FINAL OUTCOME ARE RETAINED.

2. PRIOR TO SUBMITTING PROPOSALS, BIDDERS SHALL EXAMINE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ON 
DRAWINGS, MAKE PERSONAL EXAMINATION OF THE SITE AND INFORM THEMSELVES FULLY AS TO ALL 
EXISTING CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS AFFECTING THE WORK AND THEIR PROPOSAL THEREFORE.

3. PROJECT SHALL MEET ALL LOCAL CODES, 2015 IBC, 2015 IFC, 2012 IECC, 2015 IMC, 2015 UPC AND THE 2014 
NEC, AND ALL AMENDMENTS TO CODES ADOPTED BY AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

4. PERMITS SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITY FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION WORK PRIOR 
TO CONSTRUCTION.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE REQUIRED TYPE AND NUMBER OF 
INSPECTIONS AND SHALL NOTIFY OFFICIALS WELL IN ADVANCE OF ALL SUCH INSPECTIONS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES OR 
PROCEDURES AND FOR ALL SAFETY PRECAUTIONS USED ON SITE.

7. THE PLANS ARE FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY, ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL FIELD CHECK ALL 
DIMENSIONS, LOCATIONS, AND CONDITIONS, ETC. IN THEIR SCOPE OF WORK

8. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS, FOLLOW DIMENSIONS AS SHOWN ON PLANS.
9. ANY MATERIAL OR LABOR NEITHER SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS, NOR SPECIFIED BUT NECESSARY TO 

COMPLETE THE WORK OF A SIMILAR NATURE SHALL BE FURNINSHED WITHOUT ADDITIONAL COST TO THE 
OWNER.

10. ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL FOLLOW THE MATERIAL OR EQUIPMENT RECOMMENDED SPECIFICATIONS, UNLESS 
NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A FIRST CLASS AND WORKMAN LIKE MANNER.

11. THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL REVIEW AND APPROVE ALL FINISH MATERIALS INCLUDING 
ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC., PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE PROOF OF HIS LIABILITY INSURANCE TO THE OWNER, PRIOR TO 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK.

13. THE OWNER SHALL PROVIDE PROPERTY INSURANCE AND ALL RISK INSURANCE COVERING THE ENTIRE 
PROJECT SCOPE.

PLUMBING
1. INFORMATION AND LAYOUTS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS ARE SCHEMATIC IN 

DESIGN, AND SHALL BE REVIEWED BY PLUMBING CONTRACTOR AND 
SUPPLIERS.

2. ALL PLUMBINGL WORK FOR THIS PROJECT SHALL BE DESIGN/BUILD IN 
NATURE AND THE RESPONSIBLITY OF THE INSTALLING CONTRACTOR TO 
PROVIDE COMPLETE WORKING SYSTEMS WHICH COMPLIMENT THE INTENT OF 
THE PROJECT DESIGN AS SHOWN.

COMPLY WITH IRC 2015 - PLUMBING SECTIONS, IOWA STATE PLUMBING CODE 
AND ASME RECOMMENDATIONS.

MECHANICAL
1. INFORMATION AND LAYOUTS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS ARE SCHEMATIC IN 

DESIGN, AND SHALL BE REVIEWED BY MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR AND 
SUPPLIERS.

2. ALL MECHAINCAL WORK FOR THIS PROJECT SHALL BE DESIGN/BUILD IN 
NATURE AND THE RESPONSIBLITY OF THE INSTALLING CONTRACTOR TO 
PROVIDE COMPLETE WORKING SYSTEMS WHICH COMPLIMENT THE INTENT OF 
THE PROJECT DESIGN AS SHOWN.

COMPLY WITH IRC 2015 - MECHANICAL SECTIONS, ASHRAE AND SMACNA 
RECOMMENDATIONS.

ELECTRICAL
1. INFORMATION AND LAYOUTS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS ARE SCHEMATIC IN 

DESIGN, AND SHALL BE REVIEWED BY ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR AND 
SUPPLIERS.

2. ALL ELECTRICALL WORK FOR THIS PROJECT SHALL BE DESIGN/BUILD IN 
NATURE AND THE RESPONSIBLITY OF THE INSTALLING CONTRACTOR TO 
PROVIDE COMPLETE WORKING SYSTEMS WHICH COMPLIMENT THE INTENT OF 
THE PROJECT DESIGN AS SHOWN.

COMPLY WITH IRC 2015 - ELECTRICAL SECTIONS, LOCAL CODES, AND 
LATEST NEC.

THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION
1. THERMAL BUILDING INSULATION AT ASSEMBLIES TO EXTERIOR OR UNHEATED 

SPACES MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF GOVERNING CODES AND UNO, THE 
FOLLOWING MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS.

2. EXTERIOR FRAME WALLS: R-13 CAVITY INSULATION PLUS R-5 INSULATED 
SHEATHING. IF STRUCTURAL SHEATHING COVERS 25 PERCENT OR LESS OF 
THE EXTERIOR, INSULATING SHEATHING IS NOT REQUIRED WHERE 
STRUCTURAL SHEATHING IS USED. IF STRUCTURAL SHEATHING COVERS 
MORE THAN 25 PERCENT OF EXTERIROR, STRUCTURAL SHEATHING SHALL BE 
SUPPLEMENTED WITH INSULATED SHEATHING OF AT LEAST R-2.

3. ROOF: R-30 MINMUM.
4. FLASHING SHEET METAL AS REQUIRED TO PREVENT PENETRATION OF 

WATER THROUGH THE EXTERIOR SHELL OF THE BUILDING. IN ADDITION TO 
COMPLYING WITH THE PERTINENT RECOMMENDATION CONTAINED IN THE 
CURRENT EDITION OF ARCHITECTURAL SHEET METAL MANUAL BY SMACNA. 
ALL IRON SHEET METAL FLASHING SHALL BE HOT-DIPPED GALVANIZED 
COMPLYING WITH ASTM A93.

5. GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR AND APPROVED BY THE OWNER SO AS TO PROVIDE POSITIVE 
ROOF AND SITE DRAINAGE. AT EACH DOWNSPOUT EXITING ON GRADE, 
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND INSTALL A SPLASH BLOCK OF 
SUFFICIENT SIZE TO PREVENT ANY DAMAGE TO SURROUNDING SURFACES.

GYPSUM BOARD ASSEMBLIES
1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

EXTENT OF GYPSUM BOARD ASSEMBLIES IS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS. THE 
WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR FINISH OF NEW 
EXTERIOR WALLS AND NEW INTERIOR PARTITIONS.

2. STANDARDS:
COMPLY WITH THE APPROPRIATE ASTM REQUIREMENTS THAT APPLY TO 
FRAMING INSTALLATION AND WITH UNITED STATES GYPSUM'S "GYPSUM 
CONSTRUCTION HANDBOOK",

ASTM C36 - GYPSUM BOARD, ASTM C840 AND GA-216 FINISHES
ASTM C 1047 - TRIM ACCESSORIES
ASTM C 475 - JOINT TREATMENT MATERIAL
ASTM C 665 - SOUND ATTENUATING BATT INSULATION (UNFACED)

EMPLOY ONLY TRADESMAN EXPERIENCED IN FABRICATION AND 
INSTALLATION OF THIS SECTION.

3. MATERIALS:
METAL STUDS:
    EXTERIOR WALLS: 6", MINIMUM 16 GAUGE @ 16" O.C.
    INTERIOR PARTITIONS 3 5/8", MINIMUM 25 GAUGE @ 16" O.C.
GYPSUM WALL BOARD: 5/8" THICK TYPE 'X' AT ALL
GALVANIZED OR ALUMINUM-COATED STEEL SHEET CORNERBEAD AT OUTSIDE 
CORNERS.
JOINT TAPE
JOINT COMPOUND

4. FINISHING:
PROVIDE LEVEL 2 FINISH: EMBED TAPE AND APPLY SEPERATE FIRST AND 
FILL COATS OF JOINT COMPOUNT TO TAPE, FATENERS, AND TRIM FLANGES. 
ALL JOINT COMPOUND SHALL BE SMOOTH AND FREE OF TOOL MARKS.

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM
1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

EXTENT OF ALUMINUM STOREFRONT FRAMING ASSEMBLIES IS SHOWN ON 
DRAWINGS.

THE WORK INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO EXTERIOR STOREFRONT 
SYSTEMS EQUAL TO KAWNEER TRI-FAB 451T.

2. STANDARDS:
COMPLY WITH THE APPROPRIATE ASTM REQUIREMENTS THAT APPLY TO 
ALUMINUM STOREFRONT INSTALLATION.
ASTM E 330 - STRUCTURAL TESTING
ASTM E 283 - AIR INFILTRATION
ASTM E 331 - WATER PENETRATION
NFRC 100 - THERMAL TRANSMITTANCE
ADA 2010 - RAIL SIZE

3. EMPLOY ONLY TRADESMEN EXPERIENCED IN FABRICATION AND 
INSTALLATION OF THIS SECTION.

4. MATERIALS:
ALUMINUM - ALLOY AND TEMPER RECOMMENDED BY MANUFACTURER FOR 
USE AND FINISH, ASTM B 209 SHEET AND ASTM B 221 EXTRUSIONS.
FRAMING MEMBERS - MANUFACTURUER'S STANDARD EXTRUDED ALUMINUM 
FRAMING MEMBERS OF THICKNESS REQUIRED AND REIFORCED AS 
REQUIRTED TO SUPPORT IMPOSED LOADS.
CONSTRUCTION - THERMALLY BROKEN FRAMING MEMBERS
DOORS - 1 3/4" THICK GLAZED DOORS WITH MINIUM 0.125" THICK EXTRUDED 
ALUMINUM TUBULAR RAIL & STILE MEMBERS, MECHANICALLY FASTEN 
CORNERS WITH REINFORCING. MEDIUM THICKNESS STILES ANTOP RAIL WITH 
MINIMUM 10" BOTTOM RAIL.

5. FINISH: CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM

METAL DOORS
1. CONSTRUCTION:

18 GA. COLD ROLLED, STRETCHER LEVELED, BONDERIZED STEEL SURFACE 
PANELS REINFORCED AND STIFFENED WITH HONEYCOMB CORE.
16 GA. STILES, AND TOP & BOTTOM RAILS, WELDED TO SURFACE SHEETS 
AT MAXIMUM 2" O.C..
STEEL REINFORCEMENT OF MINIMUM 10 GA. FOR HINGES, MINIMUM 12 GA. 
FOR CLOSERS, AND MINIMUM 14 GA. FOR HARDWARE.
MEMBERS SHALL BE WELL FORMED, SQUARE, FLAT, IN TRUE ALIGNMENT  
AND SHALL BE REINFORCED FOR ALL HARDWARE.

2. UNITS SHALL BE EQUAL TO STEELCRAFT MANUFACTURING 'L' SERIES.

GLAZING
1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

EXTENT OF GLAZING IS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS.

THE WORK INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO EXTERIOR STOREFRONT 
SYSTEM

2. STANDARDS:
COMPLY WITH THE APPROPRIATE ASTM REQUIREMENTS THAT APPLY TO 
GLAZING INSTALLATION.
ASTM E 1996 - WIND BORNE DEBRIS RESISTENCE
IGMA PUBLICATION FOR INSULATING GLASS - SIGMA TM-3000 "NORTH 
AMERICAN GLAZING GUIDELINES FOR SEALED INSULATING GLASS UNITS FOR 
COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL USE."

3. EMPLOY ONLY TRADESMEN EXPERIENCED IN FABRICATION AND 
INSTALLATION OF THIS SECTION.

4. GLASS TYPES: 1" TINTED, LOW-E COATED INSULATED, TEMPERED GLASS
5. FINISH: LIGHT GRAY AS SELECTED BY OWNER

E.P.

7'-
0"

5'-
0"

20
'-0

"

45
'-0

"

50
'-6

"

52
'-0

"

03

A

1.

1-01A
UTIL.

MECH./

2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.

A.

B.

13'-4" 4'-0" 3'-0" 4'-0" 3'-0" 5'-0" 9'-0" 4'-0" 6'-0" 4'-0" 9'-0" 4'-0" 9'-0" 4'-0" 3'-0" 4'-0" 6'-0" 13'-0" 4'-0" 15'-0" 12'-0" 4'-0"

162'-8"

1-01
LEASE SPACE

1-02
LEASE SPACE

1-02A
UTIL.

MECH./

1-03
LEASE SPACE

1-03A
UTIL.

MECH./

1-04
SERV
BLD01A

01B

02

02B

02A

04 03B

1'-6"

03A

9"
9"

6'-4" 4"

A D B D

4" 6'-4"

B

CC

E

3 
5/

8" 2'-
4"

20
'-0

"
22

'-8
"

3 
5/

8"

50
'-6

"
9"

9"

2'-0" 6'-8" 30'-4" 3'-4" 13'-8" 6'-8" 16'-0" 3'-4" 9'-8" 3'-4" 4'-8" 3'-4" 56'-8"

159'-8"

E

2'-8"6'-4"

17'-4"

19'-8"15'-8"29'-0"18'-8"25'-0"25'-0"

1'-6"1'-6"

29'-8"

1'-6"

A

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

CONCRETE 
FLOOR SLAB @ 
MECH ROOM

E.P. HWH
FD

FURN
CONCRETE 
FLOOR SLAB @ 
MECH ROOM

E.P. HWH
FD

FURN

E.P.

W
AT

ER

CONCRETE 
FLOOR SLAB @ 
BLDG. SERV.

HWH ABOVE SLOP SINK

FURN
FD

CONCRETE 
FLOOR SLAB @ 
MECH ROOM

SHELL FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

4
A2

A.

B.
02

OPEN TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF SYSTEM OPEN TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF SYSTEM OPEN TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF SYSTEM

CUMARU WOOD 2x8 OUTLOOKERS WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER
STEEL CHANNEL FRAME - PAINT

STEEL SOFFIT ABOVE

CUMARU WOOD 2x8 OUTLOOKERS WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER
STEEL CHANNEL FRAME - PAINT

STEEL SOFFIT ABOVE

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

2
A2

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.

3'-
0"

OV
ER

HA
NG

EQ. EQ.

1
12

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF SYSTEM
SLOPE 1:12 TO CONTINUOUS GUTTER ON
BACK OF BUILDING WITH SIMPLE SAVER
INSULATION - MIN R-30

8" x 8" GUTTER WITH 4" x 6" DOWNSPOUTS ONTO GRADE

ROOF PLAN
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

3
A2

25



 

Copyright R. Wayne Williamson, AIA

Date: 7/2/18

A3
Sheet Number

Sheet Name

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
 

Drawn By Checked By

RWW RWW

CAD File Name
Building 1 Plan

Project Number

018019

Da
te

DK
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
TH

IS
 P

LA
N,

 IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
TH

E 
DE

SI
GN

AN
D 

CO
NC

EP
T,

 IS
 T

HE
 P

RO
PE

RT
Y 

O
F

R.
 W

AY
NE

 W
IL

LI
AM

SO
N,

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
AN

D 
IS

 P
RO

TE
CT

ED
 U

ND
ER

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
LA

W
. U

NA
UT

OR
IZ

ED
 U

SE
IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

OH
IB

IT
ED

.

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
  
  

20
18

BY
 R

. W
AY

NE
 W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N,
 A

RC
HI

TE
CT

A 
Ne

w
 F

ac
ili

ty
 a

t:

93
6 V

ik
in

g 
Ro

ad
Bu

ild
in

g 
#1

Ce
da

r F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 R
ev

is
io

n

60
4 C

la
y 

St
re

et
, C

ed
ar

 F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

31
9-

76
8-

72
35

R.
 W

ay
ne

 W
ill

ia
m

so
n,

 A
rc

hi
te

ct

18
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

4

4

1

1

2 1 2

5

6

6

7

8

9

3

1

1

2 1

3

2 1

1

2 1

1

4

4

1

1

1

1

2 21

3

1

3

2

2

2

2

2

2

1

1 3 1

5

6

6

7

8

9

01 A A D

D1

D

D1

B 02 B

B1

03

4

4 4

9

1

1 CC

01B02B03B 04

5

7

10

1

1

9

1

1

1

5

7

10

9

10

6

1

7

1

10

5

5

5

1

1

2 1

3

4

4

8

7

6

4

4

9

E

10

6

1

7

1

10

5

5

5

1

1

21

3

4

4

8

7

6

4

4

9

E

SOUTH ELEVATION
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
A2

NORTH ELEVATION
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3
A2

EAST ELEVATION
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

2
A2

WEST ELEVATION
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

4
A2

2 11

A

7/8" VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - CHARCOAL

7/8" VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - SILVER

ROCK FACED CEMENT MASONRY UNITS - GRAY COLOR

CUMARU WOOD SHIPLAP SIDING WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER

GALVANIZED STEEL FRAME PAINTED BONE WHITE, 2 COATS OVER PRIMER, SEMI-GLOSS

STEEL SOFFIT AND FASCIA TRIM - SILVER

GALVANIZED STEEL CHANNEL PAINTED BONE WHITE, 2 COATS OVER PRIMER, SEMI-GLOSS

CUMARU WOOD 2 x 8 OUTLOOKERS WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF - GALVALUME

EXTERIOR FINISH GUIDE
NOTE: ALL EXTERIOR MATERIALS MUST HAVE A SAMPLE APPROVED BY THE ARCHITECT BEFORE

MATERIALS ARE ORDERED

8 x 8 GUTTER & 4 x 6 DOWNSPOUTS - CHARCOAL

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

10
'-0

"

3'-
9 

3/
4"

2'-
8"

DOOR AND OPENING SCHEDULE
PLAN

NUMBER ELEV. WIDTH HEIGHT THICKNESS MATERIAL

DOOR

ELEV. MATERIAL

FRAME HARDWARE
GROUP REMARKS

01 A PR. 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" AL/GL 1 ALUM. 1 --

DOOR HARDWARE GROUPS
NOTE: ALL HANDLE SETS SHALL BE SCHLAGE AL SERIES LEVER LATCHES, GRADE 2 CYLINDRICAL LOCKS - 
SATURN STYLE, SATIN CHROME FINISH. ALL OTHER HARDWARE SHALL BE AS INDICATED IN FINISH TO MATCH 
LATCH SET.

HARDWARE GROUP #1
NOTE: ALL HARDWARE (AS WELL AS ALL ITEMS REQUIRED FOR PROPER 
FUNCTION) IN THIS GROUP TO BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY 
STOREFRONT CONTRACTOR

3 PAIR STAINLESS STEEL HINGES (STANLEY 179 SERIES OR EQUAL)
2 INTERIOR PUSH BAR EXIT DEVICES WITH CONCEALED RODS & 
DOGGING (VON DUPRIN 99 SERIES OR EQUAL)
LOW ENERGY CLOSERS (LCN 1441 OR EQUAL) 
2 ADA PUSH BUTTONS 
2 EXTERIOR DOOR PULLS
THRESHOLD 
WEATHERSTRIPPING

FUNCTION: KEYED EXTERIOR ACCESS AT ANYTIME, KEYED LOCKING FOR 
AFTER HOURS WITH PUSH BAR INTERIOR EXIT AT ANYTIME, DOGGING 
FEATURE TO ALLOW FREE OPERATION OF BOTH LEAFS DURING 
BUSINESS HOURS, AT LEAST ONE LEAF TO MEET ALL ADA AND 
ACCEESSIBLITY STANDARDS.

HARDWARE GROUP #3
NOTE: ALL HANDLE SETS SHALL BE SCHLAGE AL SERIES LEVER 
LATCHES, GRADE 2 CYLINDRICAL LOCKS - SATURN STYLE, SATIN 
CHROME FINISH. ALL OTHER HARDWARE SHALL BE AS INDICATED IN 
FINISH TO MATCH LATCH SET.

3 STAINLESS STEEL EXTERIOR HINGES (STANLEY 179 SERIES OR 
EQUAL)
STORAGE LATCH LEVER TRIM
CYLINDER LOCK KEYED EXTERIOR
OVERHEAD STOP
THRESHOLD
WEATHERSTRIPPING

FUNCTION: KEYED EXTERIOR ACCESS AT ANYTIME, LEVER OPERATED 
INTERIOR EXIT AT ANYTIME, SECURITY CYLINDER WITH KEYED 
OPERATION ON EXTERIOR & THUMB TURN FROM INTERIOR.

DOOR TYPES

7'-
0"

3'-0"

A.
1 3/4" ALUMINUM ENTRY DOOR, MEDIUM

STILE (3 1/2" SIDE RAILS, 3 1/2" TOP
RAIL & 10" BOTTOM RAIL). THERMALLY
BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM
WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED TEMPERED

GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER 360 INSULCLAD OR EQUAL.

7'-
0"

SEE SCHED

B.
1 3/4" INSULATED 18 GAUGE,

HOT-DIPPED GALVANIZED HOLLOW
STEEL FLUSH DOOR, U-VALUE 0.41 OR
BETTER. REINFORCED FOR HARDWARE.

CECO DOOR
#CHMDXFL3070XCYL-CU-18GA OR EQUAL.

WINDOW TYPES

3'-0"

2 1/4" 2 1/4"
10

"
2'-

2"
2"

2"

10
'-0

"

2 
1/

4"

NOTE: TEMPERED GLASS WHERE REQUIRED

3'-0" 3'-0"

6'-0"

2 1/4" 2 1/4"

3'-
9 

3/
4"

2'-
8"

10
"

2'-
2"

2"
2"

10
'-0

"

2 
1/

4"

3'-0 3/8" 2'-11 1/8" 3'-0 3/8"

9'-0"

3'-
9 

3/
4"

2'-
8"

10
"

2'-
2"

2"
2"

10
'-0

"

2 
1/

4"

3'-4" 3'-4"

6'-8"

2 1/4" 2 1/4"

3'-
9 

3/
4"

2'-
8"

10
"

2'-
2"

2"
2"

10
'-0

"

2 
1/

4"

2 1/4"2 1/4"

20'-0"

3'-4 7/8"

2 1/4"

3'-3 5/8" 3'-3 5/8" 3'-4 7/8"

2 1/4"

3'-3 5/8"3'-3 5/8"

2 
1/

4"
3'-

1 
3/

4"
3'-

10
"

1'-
8"

2"
10

"
2"

2'-
8"

10
"

3'-
10

"
2"

2'-
1 

3/
4"

2"
2 

1/
4"

5'-
0"

2 
1/

4"
2'-

7 
3/

4"
2"

2 
1/

4"
1'-

9 
3/

4"

5'-
0"

2 
1/

4"
2'-

7 
3/

4"
2"

2 
1/

4"
1'-

9 
3/

4"

DOOR FRAME TYPES

1.
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED
TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR
BETTER. KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR

EQUAL.

2.
16 GAUGE, HOT-DIPPED GALVANIZED

HOLLOW STEEL FLUSH DOOR FRAME.
FULLY WELDED CONSTRUCTION,

REINFORCED FOR HARDWARE. CECO
DOOR  OR EQUAL.

7'-
0"

7'-
0"

2"

2" 2"

A.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

B1.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

C.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

D1.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

E.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

2"

2" 6'-0" 2"

10
'-0

"

3'-2" 3'-2"

D.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

B.
 THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM WITH CLEAR 1" INSULATED

TEMPERED GLASS, U-VALUE 0.35 OR BETTER.
KAWNEER TRIFAB 451-T OR EQUAL.

01A B 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 2 --

01B B 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 3 --

HARDWARE GROUP #2
NOTE: ALL HANDLE SETS SHALL BE SCHLAGE AL SERIES LEVER 
LATCHES, GRADE 2 CYLINDRICAL LOCKS - SATURN STYLE, SATIN 
CHROME FINISH. ALL OTHER HARDWARE SHALL BE AS INDICATED IN 
FINISH TO MATCH LATCH SET.

3 STAINLESS STEEL EXTERIOR HINGES (STANLEY 179 SERIES OR 
EQUAL)
STORAGE LATCH LEVER TRIM

FUNCTION: KEYED EXTERIOR ACCESS AT ANYTIME, LEVER OPERATED 
INTERIOR EXIT AT ANYTIME.

02 A PR. 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" AL/GL 1 ALUM. 1 --

02A B 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 2 --

02B B 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 3 --

03 A PR. 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" AL/GL 1 ALUM. 1 --

03A B PR.2'-8" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 2 --

03B B 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 3 --

04 B 3'-0" 7'-0" 1 3/4" H.M. 2 H.M. 3 --

SEE SCHED

HARDWARE GROUP #4
3 PAIR STAINLESS STEEL HINGES (STANLEY 179 SERIES OR EQUAL)
STOREROOM LEVER LATCH
MANUAL VERTICAL RODS ON INACTIVE LEAF

FUNCTION: KEYED EXTERIOR ACCESS AT ANYTIME, LEVER OPERATED 
INTERIOR EXIT AT ANYTIME.

26



 

Copyright R. Wayne Williamson, AIA

Date: 7/2/18

A4
Sheet Number

Sheet Name

WALL SECTIONS
 

Drawn By Checked By

RWW RWW

CAD File Name
Building 1 Plan

Project Number

018019

Da
te

DK
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
TH

IS
 P

LA
N,

 IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
TH

E 
DE

SI
GN

AN
D 

CO
NC

EP
T,

 IS
 T

HE
 P

RO
PE

RT
Y 

O
F

R.
 W

AY
NE

 W
IL

LI
AM

SO
N,

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
AN

D 
IS

 P
RO

TE
CT

ED
 U

ND
ER

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
LA

W
. U

NA
UT

OR
IZ

ED
 U

SE
IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

OH
IB

IT
ED

.

CO
PY

RI
GH

T 
  
  

20
18

BY
 R

. W
AY

NE
 W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N,
 A

RC
HI

TE
CT

A 
Ne

w
 F

ac
ili

ty
 a

t:

93
6 V

ik
in

g 
Ro

ad
Bu

ild
in

g 
#1

Ce
da

r F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 R
ev

is
io

n

60
4 C

la
y 

St
re

et
, C

ed
ar

 F
al

ls
, I

A
 5

06
13

31
9-

76
8-

72
35

R.
 W

ay
ne

 W
ill

ia
m

so
n,

 A
rc

hi
te

ct

FINISHED FLOOR
ELEV.: 100'-0"

CONCRETE FOOTING & 
FOUNDATION - SEE 
STRUCTURAL DETAILS

BTM. OF FOOTING
ELEV.: 96'-0"

2" R-7.5 PERIMETER 
INSULATION

MIN. 4" COMPACTED GRAVEL 

FUTURE 4" CONCRETE SLAB ON  
10 MIL. POLY VAPOR BARRIER, 
UNDER SEPARATE CONTRACT

1/2" RIGID INSULATION 
THERMAL BREAK

CONTINUOUS SILL SEALER

SLOPE CONC. WALK AWAY 
FROM BUILDING

EXTERIOR FINISH - SEE ELEVATIONS 
(VERTICAL 7/8" CORREGATED METAL PANEL 
WITH MATCHING FASTENERS & CLOSURES 
EQUAL TO PAC-CLAD SHOWN)

CONT. VAPOR BARRIER EQUAL TO 
TYVEK COMMERCIAL WRAP

1 1/2" CONTINUOUS XPS INSULATION 
(MIN. R-5) EQUAL TO OWENS CORNING 
FOAMULAR 150

6" METAL STUDS,
18 GAUGE @ 16" O.C. MAX

MINIMUM R-13 INSULATION IN ALL STUD 
CAVITIES, CONTRACTORS OPTION FOR 
UNFACED BATT INSULATION OR CLOSED 
CELL SPRAY FOAM

CONT. AIR BARRIER EQUAL TO 
CERTAINTEED MEMBRAIN

MIN. 1/2" PLYWOOD OR OSB 
SHEATHING

FUTURE GYP. BOARD FINISH, UNDER 
SEPARATE CONTRACT

STEEL FRAME BEYOND BY METAL 
BUILDING CONTRACTOR - SEE 
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

12
1

R-40 SIMPLE SAVER TYPE  SYSTEM W/ 
FABRIC INNER LINING DRAWN TIGHT:
3" R-10 INSULATION OVER
9 1/4" R-30 BATT INSULATION, BY METAL 
BUILDING CONTRACTOR

PURLINS BY METAL BUILDING CONTRACTOR - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF SYSTEM BY 
METAL BUILDING CONTRACTOR

PREFINISHED METAL CLOSURE 
AND FASCIA BY METAL BUIDING 
CONTRACTOR

PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT 
BY METAL BUIDING 
CONTRACTOR

CONT. C5x6.7 STEEL CHANNEL BOLT 
THROUGH STUDS @ 32" O.C. MAX. - 
PAINT

CONT. 'Z' FLASHING WITH 
HEMMED EDGE

4'-
0"

10
'-0

"
11

'-0
"

3'-0"

1'-
6 

1/
2"

12
1

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF SYSTEM BY 
METAL BUILDING CONTRACTOR

PREFINISHED METAL CLOSURE AND 
FASCIA BY METAL BUIDING 
CONTRACTOR

PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT BY 
METAL BUIDING CONTRACTOR

2" R-7.5 PERIMETER INSULATION

MIN. 4" COMPACTED GRAVEL 

R-40 SIMPLE SAVER TYPE  SYSTEM W/ 
FABRIC INNER LINING DRAWN TIGHT:
3" R-10 INSULATION OVER
9 1/4" R-30 BATT INSULATION, BY METAL 
BUILDING CONTRACTOR

PURLINS BY METAL BUILDING 
CONTRACTOR - SEE STRUCTURAL 
DRAWINGS

6" METAL STUDS,
18 GAUGE @ 16" O.C. MAX

MINIMUM R-19 INSULATION IN ALL STUD 
CAVITIES, CONTRACTORS OPTION FOR 
UNFACED BATT INSULATION OR CLOSED 
CELL SPRAY FOAM

CONT. AIR BARRIER EQUAL TO 
CERTAINTEED MEMBRAIN

CONT. C5x6.7 STEEL
CHANNEL BOLT THROUGH STUDS 
@ 32" O.C. MAX. - PAINT

CONT. 'Z' FLASHING 
WITH HEMMED EDGE

CONT. VAPOR BARRIER EQUAL TO 
TYVEK COMMERCIAL WRAP

1 1/2" CONTINUOUS XPS INSULATION 
(MIN. R-5) EQUAL TO OWENS 
CORNING FOAMULAR 150

MIN. 1/2" PLYWOOD OR 
OSB SHEATHING

FUTURE 4" CONCRETE SLAB ON  10 
MIL. POLY VAPOR BARRIER, UNDER 
SEPARATE CONTRACT

FUTURE GYP. BOARD FINISH, UNDER 
SEPARATE CONTRACT

EXTERIOR FINISH - SEE ELEVATIONS 
(CUMARU SHIP LAP WOOD SIDING)

GLASS & ALUMINUM ENTRY 
DOOR SYSTEM WITH TRANSOM 
EQUAL TO KAWNEER 451-T 

THRESHOLD SET 
IN MASTIC

STEEL FRAME BEYOND BY METAL BUILDING 
CONTRACTOR - SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

2 x 8 CEDAR OUTLOOKERS 
SPACED @ 12" O.C.

CONT. C5x6.7 STEEL CHANNEL 
MITRE & CONNECT WITH 1/4" FILET 
WELD AT CORNER

U-SHAPED CONNECTOR WELD TO CHANNEL 
FOR EACH OUTLOOKER ATTACHED TO 
CHANNEL 

R-40 SIMPLE SAVER TYPE  SYSTEM W/ 
FABRIC INNER LINING DRAWN TIGHT:
3" R-10 INSULATION OVER
9 1/4" R-30 BATT INSULATION, BY METAL 
BUILDING CONTRACTOR

6" METAL STUDS,
18 GAUGE @ 16" O.C. MAX

MINIMUM R-13 INSULATION IN ALL 
STUD CAVITIES, CONTRACTORS OPTION 
FOR UNFACED BATT INSULATION OR 
CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM

CONT. AIR BARRIER EQUAL TO 
CERTAINTEED MEMBRAIN

CONT. 'Z' FLASHING WITH 
HEMMED EDGE

CONT. VAPOR BARRIER EQUAL TO 
TYVEK COMMERCIAL WRAP

1" CONTINUOUS XPS INSULATION (MIN. 
R-5) EQUAL TO OWENS CORNING 
FOAMULAR 150

MIN. 1/2" PLYWOOD OR OSB 
SHEATHING

FINISHED FLOOR
ELEV.: 100'-0"

CONCRETE FOOTING & FOUNDATION - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DETAILS

BTM. OF FOOTING
ELEV.: 96'-0"

2" R-7.5 PERIMETER INSULATION

MIN. 4" COMPACTED GRAVEL 

FUTURE 4" CONCRETE SLAB ON  
10 MIL. POLY VAPOR BARRIER, 
UNDER SEPARATE CONTRACT

CONT. C5x6.7 STEEL CHANNEL BOLT 
THROUGH STUDS @ 32" O.C. MAX. - 
PAINT

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF SYSTEM 
BY METAL BUILDING CONTRACTOR

PREFINISHED METAL CLOSURE 
AND FASCIA BY METAL BUIDING 
CONTRACTOR

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT BY METAL BUIDING 
CONTRACTOR

EXTERIOR FINISH - SEE ELEVATIONS 
(VERTICAL 7/8" CORREGATED METAL 
PANEL WITH MATCHING FASTENERS & 
CLOSURES EQUAL TO PAC-CLAD 
SHOWN)

BOXED 10" METAL STUD HEADER, 
STUFF WITH INSULATION

FUTURE GYP. BOARD FINISH, UNDER 
SEPARATE CONTRACT

FUTURE GYP. BOARD FINISH, UNDER 
SEPARATE CONTRACT

GLASS & ALUMINUM WINDOW SYSTEM 
EQUAL TO KAWNEER 451-T 

STEEL FRAME BEYOND BY METAL 
BUILDING CONTRACTOR - SEE 
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

FINISHED FLOOR
ELEV.: 100'-0"

BTM. OF FOOTING
ELEV.: 96'-0"

4'-
0"

10
'-0

"
11

'-0
"

1'-
6 

1/
2"

10'-0"

2'-4" 7'-0"

WALL SECTION
Scale: 3/4" = 1'-0"

1
A4

WALL SECTION
Scale: 3/4" = 1'-0"

2
A4

WALL SECTION
Scale: 3/4" = 1'-0"

3
A4

27



28



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: November 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review for 
a new multi-use building at 2119 College Street. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Slingshot Architecture 
 

LOCATION: 
 

2119 College Street, 925 W 22nd Street, and 1003 W 22nd Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to demolish the existing multi-family dwellings currently located at 2119 College 
Street and 1003 W 22nd Street, in order to construct a new 5-story mixed-use building, which will 
include a commercial retail space on the first floor and 31 residential units on the second 
through fifth floors.  
 

 
 Building view from corner of College Street and W 22nd Street. 

29



2 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
The two multi-family dwellings on the property (2119 College and 1003 W. 22nd) were 
constructed in 1900. The commercial property at 925 W. 22nd Street was demolished earlier this 
year. The developer has owned the multi-family dwellings since 2016, and the commercial 
building since 2012. The two remaining multi-unit residential buildings will be demolished and a 
new 5-story mixed-use building will be constructed in its place. In the last year, the Planning & 
Zoning Commission has considered two other development proposals for this site, but neither 
was approved. This is a new submittal for a mixed-use building at 2119 College Street with a 
parking lot at 925 and 1003 W. 22nd Street. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned C-3, High Density Commercial District and is located within the College 
Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. Projects within this district require a site plan review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council, based on the following elements: 
 

1) Proposed Use: The proposed building is designed with commercial space on the main 
floor with four upper floors containing 31 residential dwelling units with a total of 47 
bedrooms. A principal commercial use with residential dwellings located on the upper 
floors is allowed in the C-3 District and College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District, subject 
to site plan approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council. Principal 
commercial use with residential uses on upper floors is allowed. 

 
2) Building and Parking Lot Setbacks: The property is zoned C-3 Commercial District. 

Principal commercial uses within this district are not required to be setback from the 
property lines. The site plan shows the building having a varied front setback from College 
Street, with the closest façade being 5 feet from the front property line. A 6-foot building 
setback is proposed from the north lot line and a 5-foot building setback from the south lot 
line. The parking lot situated along W. 22nd Street provides a 7-foot setback along all 
property lines. The minimum parking lot setback in the C-3 commercial district is 5 feet. 
Building and parking lot setbacks are satisfied. 

 
3) Density: For a commercial building with upper floor residential, there is no residential 

density requirement. This standard is not applicable.  
 

4) Parking: In the C-3 District, on-site parking is not required for the commercial component 
of the project. Also, the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District states that on-site 
parking is not required for secondary, accessory residential uses that are located on upper 
floors of a principal permitted commercial use. Per Section 29-160(g)(2) secondary or 
accessory residential uses to be established on the upper floors of principal permitted 
commercial uses are allowed. On-site parking will not be required for secondary, 
accessory residential uses. Other than the entrance/elevator lobby for the residents 
located at the rear of the building, the entire main floor is designed to accommodate any 
principal commercial uses allowed in the C-3 District. There are no residential uses 
located on the main floor of the building.  All residential uses are located on the upper 
floors of the building. Planning and zoning commission and city council review relating to 
the establishment of secondary or accessory residential uses shall not be required 
unless the property owner proposes to utilize any portion of the ground floor area of a 
commercial use on a property for residential purposes. While staff finds that parking is 

30



3 
 

not required for the proposed building, the developer is proposing to provide a total of 47 
on-site parking spaces for 47 bedrooms in the proposed building. Parking is not required 
for this use within the C-3 District, but the developer is providing 47 on-site parking 
spaces. 

 

5) Open Green Space: For commercial buildings in the C-3 District there are no open green 
space area requirements, since the goal is to encourage commercial buildings to be 
located close to the street to create a walkable, mainstreet character to the College Hill 
business district. 

 

The provided site plan does show some open space along the north and south side of the 
building and around the parking lot, where grass and landscape plantings will be provided. 
Within the front setback area along College Street there is an outdoor plaza illustrated on 
the site plan as an outdoor service area.  No open green space is required, but some 
open space is provided on the site. 

 
6) Landscaping: The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District requires landscaping along 

the periphery of the parking area and internal to the parking area.  
 

A landscaping plan has been submitted, which shows plantings along W 22nd Street and 
along the periphery of the parking lot. The plans include additional landscaping in front of 
the building on College Street with an extra tree and grate in the sidewalk. The existing 
driveway into 2119 College Street will be removed and reconstructed as sidewalk area. 
There are also trees and plantings planned within the parking area and street trees and 
screening proposed along the 22nd Street frontage that will provide a buffer between the 
parking area and the public sidewalk. Landscaping plan meets the requirements of the 
code. 
 

7) Building Design: The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District states that the 
architectural character, materials, and textures of all buildings shall be compatible with 
those primary design elements on structures located on adjoining properties and also in 
consideration of said design elements commonly utilized on other nearby properties on 
the same block or within the immediate neighborhood. Comparable scale and character in 
relation to adjoining properties and other nearby properties in the immediate neighborhood 
shall be maintained by reviewing several design elements. These are noted below with a 
review on how each element is addressed.  

oLife  

 
Maintaining Similar Roof Pitch: 
 

Flat roofs are used in this area. The proposed building also uses a flat roof. 
 

Maintaining Similar Building Height, Building Scale and Building Proportion: 
 

Most of the buildings in this immediate area are either one-story or two-story in height. 
The proposed building will be 5 stories in height, which would replace two existing two-
story structures that are currently on the property. The property is zoned C-3 Commercial 
District, which has a building height limitation of 165 feet or three times the width of the 
road that the building faces. In this case College Street is 40 feet in width, meaning that 
the maximum building height allowed would be 120 feet (40 feet x 3). As this structure 

31



4 
 

would be 61 feet 6 inches in height, it would meet the height requirement of the Zoning 
Ordinance. This property is also located within the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
Zoning District. This overlay district does not have a specific height limitation for buildings, 
but it does call for reviewing the scale of a proposed building in relation to adjoining 
properties and other nearby properties within the immediate neighborhood. 
 
The applicant has provided a diagram which shows several other buildings within a 2-3 
block area that are taller than the proposed building (see attached diagram for building 
locations). In the diagram, it shows the proposed building with a height of approximately 
62 feet. Other buildings in the area and their heights include the St. Stephen Catholic 
Student Center on W 23rd Street at 40 feet in height, Bartlett Hall on the UNI campus on 
W 23rd Street at 49 feet in height, the UNI parking garage on W 23rd Street at 35 feet in 
height, and Dancer Hall on Campus Street on the UNI campus at 159 feet in height. Also, 
the applicant has provided a side elevation diagram which shows the street section of 
buildings located on College Street and their height comparison to the proposed building. 
Based on the diagrams presented below, staff feels that the building scale and height will 
not be out of character for the area, as there are other structures within the neighborhood 
that are comparable in scale and height to the proposed building.  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Use of Materials Comparable and Similar to Other Buildings on Nearby Properties in the 
Immediate Neighborhood: 
 
Most of the buildings in this immediate neighborhood are constructed with brick materials.  
The proposed building will have a more modern look, as it will be constructed with a mix 
of metal paneling (with a contrasting color and design), brick and glass openings. The 
colors include charcoal/black for the entry masses at the front and rear of the building with 
off-white as the metal panel along the larger north and south portions. The brick is 
planned to be a neutral tan/gray with brick detailing similar to the image shown at key 
locations. Each of the four sides of the building will have a slightly different design in 
relation to the amount and type of materials used. Please see the table below which 

Building Height Comparisons 

Street Section along College Street 

32



5 
 

breaks down the use of materials by building side. 
 

Side of Building Brick Metal Paneling Openings 

North 24% 52% 24% 

South 33% 50% 17% 

East (College St) 47% 30% 23% 

West 32% 50% 18% 

 

 
 

 
In addition to the design of the building, the overlay district looks at building scale, in that 
the maximum width of the front facade shall not be wider than 40 feet. If a building were 
to have a larger width than 40 feet, the facade of the building must be broken into 
modules that give the appearance of smaller, individual buildings. 

 
 Each individual module should adhere to the following guidelines, in order to give the 

appearance of separate, individual buildings: 
1. Each module shall be no greater than 40 feet and no less than 10 feet in width. 
2. Each module should have a corresponding change in roof line for the purpose of 

architectural identity. 
3. Each module should be distinguished from the adjacent module by at least one of the 

following means: 
a. Variation in material colors, types and textures 
b. Variation in the building and/or parapet height 
c. Variation in the architectural details such as decorative banding, reveals, stones 

or tile accent 
d. Variation in window pattern 
e. Variation in the use of balconies and recesses 

 
 The building has a width of 45 feet as viewed from College Street, but is broken into three 

modules, distinguished by changes in building material, wall plane, colors, and textures. 
The sides and rear of the building are also broken into modules with similar changes in 
material, color, and changes in the wall plane that helps to break up the mass of the 
building from all vantage points.  

 
 Staff finds that the proposed building design meets the standards.  

 

East Elevation South Elevation 
 

33



6 
 

8) Trash Dumpster Site: The site plan shows a dumpster enclosure contained within the 
parking area at the northwest corner of the lot. The 8’-0” tall trash enclosure is constructed 
with a brick wall to match the building with metal doors. The landscaping plan shows trees, 
shrubs and ornamental grasses along the north and west side of the enclosure. Trash 
enclosure is acceptable. 
 

9) Lighting: The C-3 District and College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay District regulations do not have specific lighting 
design guidelines. A lighting plan has been submitted, 
which details the exterior lighting to be placed along the 
faces of the building along College Street. This lighting 
will light up the faces of the building, highlighting the 
masonry materials without producing light spill onto other 
properties. The LED lighting in the parking areas will be 
oriented to prevent shining into the residential windows of the 
neighboring properties. Lighting plan is acceptable. 

 

10) Signage: Wall signs are illustrated on the building renderings 
along the east side of the building facing College Street. These 
signs will indicate the name of the development. The proposed 
wall signs appear to be well within the District limitations of no 
larger than 1/3rd of the surface area of the single wall area to 
which the wall sign is attached, however this will be reviewed in 
detail at the time a sign permit is requested. Signage is 
acceptable, subject to detailed review with a sign permit. 

 
11) Sidewalks: A minimum 5 foot paved sidewalk exists in front of the property along both 

College Street and W 22nd Street. The site plan shows additional pedestrian plaza area 
along College Street and additional decorative paving located near the entrance on the 
west side of the building. There is a change in grade along College Street that will need to 
be addressed.  The staff will work with the applicant to make sure that areas are 
accessible and maintain a pedestrian-oriented frontage to coincide with the public 
sidewalk. Sidewalk requirements are met. 
 

12) Bike Racks: There are 2 bike racks located on College Street 
next to the tree grates. These are a black powder coated rack 
for five bikes. Additional bike racks should be placed behind the 
building next to the parking lot. Add more bike racks by the 
back entrance into the building. 

 
13) Storm Water Management: Storm water will be collected on site via an underground 

detention area underneath the parking lot and piped along the north side of the building to 
the storm sewer along College Street. City Engineering Staff has indicated that they will 
need to see the final details on the system once they are designed by the developer’s 
engineer. Stormwater requirements will need to be reviewed and approved once 
final design is completed. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, have few comments on the 

 
Parking Lot Light Fixture 

 
Wall Mount Fixture 

 

34



7 
 

proposed item. The developer will be responsible to extend all utilities to the site. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the College Hill 
Neighborhood District Site Plan for a new mixed-use building at 2119 College Street with the 
following stipulation: 
 

1) Any additional comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Add additional bike racks near the back entrance of the building by the parking lot. 

 
 
  

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
11-14-18 

 

  

 

35



Dry
Run

Creek (Univ)

University
of Northern

Iowa

Ol
ive

 St

Iow
a S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

W
isc

on
sin

St

W 26th St

W 22nd St

W 21st St

W 20th St

Ca
mp

us
 St

W 23rd St

Mauker Dr

Floral Ct

W 25th St

W Seerley Blvd

Me
rne

r A
ve

Co
lle

ge
 St

University Ave

R-3

C-3

R-4

R-4
R-2

R-2

P

R-3

College Hill Neighborhood Overlay
District Site Plan Review

University
of Northern

Iowa

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Black
Hawk
Park

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

University Ave

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
November 28, 2018

36



37



38



39



40



T

M

M

T

M

M

M

M
M

M

T

T

T

M

T
T

M
M

T

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

G(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)
San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)StS(D)StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)StS(D)StS(D)StS(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

T
T

T
T

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(D)

StS(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

6" CI W

6"
 C

I W8"
 V

SP
 S

AN

8" VSP SAN

SAN MH
RIM=892.64
IE=884.98

SAN MH
RIM=893.58
IE=886.04

(BUILDING)

(BUILDING)

(ACC)

(P
CC

)

(PCC)

CS

F HYD
BM #2

NE BOLT
EL=894.63

EX TRANS

EX TRANS

TELE PED GAS MTR
TELE PED

TELE PED

RETAINING WALL

INTAKE
GRATE=888.12

StS(D)

18
"

ST MH
RIM=892.18

ST MH
RIM=892.87
IE=887.81

INTAKE
RIM=892.69

ST MH
RIM=889.60
IE=883.64

ST MH
RIM=887.89
IE=882.82

INTAKE
GRATE=887.75
IE=884.67

12" PVC

GV

GAS MTR
TELE PED

T
T

T T T T T T T T T T T T

INTAKE
GRATE=893.44
IE=888.49

INTAKE
GRATE=893.86

IE=889.22

INTAKE
GRATE=893.08

IE=890.54

18"

18"
18"

INTAKE
RIM=894.88

IE=890.02

12
"

INTAKE

W
AL

K

WALK (PCC) WALK (PCC)

INTAKE
GRATE=886.09

IE=883.09

18
"

EX TRANS
TELE PED
TELE PED

ST MH
RIM=893.64

PP

6" CI W

ACRES
0.69 ACRES

(BUILDING)

(BUILDING)

(BUILDING)

WALK (BRICK)

StSStSStSStSStSStSStSStS

StS StS StS

StSStSStS

22ND STREET

SOD

4-GT 1-GT

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LI

N
E

28-CS

2-CA

2-CA
4-GB

2-CA
2-CA

PROPOSED
MULTI-USE BUILDING

SOD

PROPERTY LINE

2-CA
2-CA

SOD SOD

PLAN ENLARGEMENT; SEE INSET 2

PLAN ENLARGEMENT; SEE INSET 3

SOD

3-GB

2-CA
2-CA

2-CA

2-CA

2-CA
2-CA

2-CA
2-CA

CO
LL

EG
E 

ST
RE

ET

4-UA

29-CS

1-AF

1-AF

1-GT

2-CA

2-CA

2-CA
2-CA

2-CA
2-CA

2-CA
2-CA

18-CS

1-AF
13-SH

13-SH

28-CS 28-CS

12-CS

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

GAS MTR
T T T T T T T T T T T

StSStSStSStSStSStSStSStSStS

StS StS

St
S

StSStS

PROPOSED MIXED-USE BUILDING

PROPERTY LINE

SOD

PROPERTY LINE
1-GB

2-CA

2-CA8-CS

ACCENT BAND PAVERS,
SEE SHEET L2.0
LITTER RECEPTACLE

M

T
T

M

M

T
T

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)
StS(D)

StS(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)
G(D) G(D) G(D) G(D) G(D)

StS(D)

T
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

StS(D)

(P
CC

)

INTAKE
GRATE=888.12

StS(D) StS(D)

ST MH
RIM=889.60
IE=883.64

GV

T
T

T
T

T

T T T T T T

18
"

EX TRANS

TELE PED

TELE PED

(BUILDING)

WALK (BRICK)

StSStSStSStSStSStS

COLLEGE STREET PAVERS TO MATCH HERRINGBONE PATTERN
AND DOUBLE SOLDIER COURSE AT BACK OF CURB DIRECTLY

ADJACENT TO THE SOUTH. TIE INTO EXISTING STREETSCAPE AT
SOUTH EDGE OF EXISTING DRIVE.

IRON TREE GRATE WITH 4"
PCC BAND. SEE DETAILS FOR
TYPICAL INSTALLATION.

1-TC

17-CS

5-SH

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED MIXED-USE BUILDING

PROPERTY LINE

CO
LL

EG
E 

ST
RE

ET

PROTECT EXISTING TREE. SALVAGE AND
REINSTALL EXISTING TREE GRATES AS
REQUIRED FOR UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS.

BIKE RACK; SEE SHEET L2.0

BIKE RACK; SEE SHEET L2.0

OUTDOOR
SERVICE AREA

FENCE PARTITION;
SEE ARCHITECTURAL

SOD

SOD

LANDSCAPE PLAN
L1.0

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

8,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\S
LI

N
GS

HO
_P

R\
T6

21
16

61
4\

CA
D\

C3
D\

Sh
ee

ts
\1

16
61

4_
LN

D.
dw

g 
11

/1
/2

01
8 

3:
46

:1
4 

PM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

REVISION DATENO.

R

309 E 5TH STREET,  SUITE 202
DES MOINES, IOWA  50309

Phone: (515) 259-9190
Email: DesMoines@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.com

COLLEGE HILL
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SJK

NMW

SJK

XXXXXXXXXX

MASTER PLANT SCHEDULE
QTY. SYM. SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME UNIT SIZE SPACING REMARKS

TREES AND SHRUBS
3 AF Acer x freemani 'Jeffersred' AUTUMN BLAZE MAPLE EA 2.5" CAL. B&B SEE PLAN
8 GB Ginkgo biloba 'Princeton Sentry' PRINCETON SENTRY GINKGO EA 2.5" CAL. B&B SEE PLAN
6 GT Gleditsia triacanthos f. inermis 'Skycole' SKYLINE HONEYLOCUST EA 2.5" CAL. B&B SEE PLAN
1 TC Tilia cordata LITTLELEAF LINDEN EA 2.5" CAL. B&B SEE PLAN
4 UA Ulmus americana 'Princeton' PRINCETON ELM EA 2.5" CAL. B&B SEE PLAN

SHRUBS, PERENNIALS & GRASSES
48 CA Calamagrostis acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' FEATHER REED GRASS EA 1 GAL. SEE PLAN

168 CS Cornus stolonifera 'Farrow' P.P. #18,523 ARCTIC FIRE RED TWIG DOGWOOD EA 1 GAL. SEE PLAN
31 SH Sporobolus heterolepis 'Tara' TARA PRAIRIE DROPSEED EA 1 GAL. 18" O.C.

SCALE: 1"=10'-0"
COLLEGE STREET (EAST) ENTRANCE3

FEETSCALE

10 200

SCALE: 1"=10'-0"
WEST ENTRANCE PLAZA2

FEETSCALE

10 200

SCALE: 1"=10'-0"
PLANTING PLAN1

FEETSCALE

20 400

41



SECTION: CONCRETE SIDEWALK / PAVER INTERFACE

2

6"10:1 TAPER

VA
RI

ES
,

PE
R

PA
VE

R
DE

PT
H

AGGREGATE BASE

PER CIVIL DETAILS

CONCRETE WALK PER CIVIL

CONSTRUCTION JOINT W/

#4 12" REBAR @ 18" O.C.

SUBGRADE PREP.

THICKENED CONCRETE EDGE

STANDARD PAVERS

ON CONC SUBBASE

PAVER TO BE FLUSH

W/ ADJACENT

CONCRETE

AGGREGATE BASE

SUBGRADE PREP

STANDARD PAVERS ON CONC SUBBASE

CONC. ANCHOR/ 1" NAIL, 12" O.C.

2.5" MIN. FROM EDGE OF CONC.

INCIDENTAL

FILL VOIDS UNDER RESTRAINT

FOR PROPER SUPPORT

3
SCALE: N.T.S.
SECTION: LANDSCAPE BED / PAVER INTERFACE

COMPACT ADJACENT GRADE

EDGE RESTRAINT - PERMALOC

STRUCTUREDGE

ALUMINUM PAVER RESTRAINT 3/16"x2-1/4"

W/ 0.21" TOP LIP MILL FINISH ALUMINUM

2 1/2"
MIN.

2.375"±(6CM) CONC. PAVER

2.75"±(7CM) CONC. PAVERS

CORE DRILLED WEEP HOLES, 2" DIA @ 24" O.C.

FILLED WITH 3/8" OPEN-GRADED AGGREGATE

NONWOVEN FABRIC

OVER WEEP HOLES,

MIN 12" SQ. PIECES

POLYMERIC SAND JOINT FILLER

1" SAND SETTING BED

4" CONCRETE SUBBASE

4" AGGREGATE BASE

SUBGRADE PREPARATION

SCALE: N.T.S.
PAVERS OVER CONCRETE SUBBASE1

ACCENT BAND PAVERS

UNILOCK CONTACT: BRAD PUNKE 630-892-9191

PRODUCT: SERIES

SIZE: 4"x8"x2.75"

COLOR: ONYX  BLACK / BLACK GRANITE

PATTERN: RUNNING BOND

OR APPROVED EQUAL PRODUCT

COLLEGE STREET PAVERS

UNILOCK CONTACT: BRAD PUNK 630-892-9191

PRODUCT: HOLLAND STONE

SIZE: 4"x8"x2.375"

COLOR: MATCH EXISTING (RUSTIC RED)

PATTERN:

DOUBLE SOLIDER COURSE AT CURB

90 DEGREE HERRINGBONE INFILL

OR APPROVED EQUAL PRODUCT

SCALE: N.T.S.

SURFACE MOUNT FURNISHINGS

4

BIKE RACK OR LITTER RECEPTACLE, SURFACE
MOUNT TO CONCRETE PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS

WITH STAINLESS STEEL HARDWARE

NOTES:
1. SURFACE MOUNT ALL FURNISHINGS PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.

PER PLAN

BIKE RACK: DERO: RR2H-C; FINISH: POWDERCOAT BLACK; WEDGE ANCHOR: .375x3.00
CONTACT: AUDREY KITTRELL, 319.320.7439 or 612.359.0689
LITTER RECEPTACLE: VICTOR STANLEY: SD-42; FEATURES: BLACK PLASTIC LINER, STANDARD
TAPERED FORMED LID, LATCH; FINISH: POWDERCOAT BLACK
CONTACT: BECKY WHELAN, 301.855.8300 ext. 375 or SALES@VICTORSTANLEY.COM

LANDSCAPE OR
CURB, PER PLANS

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

8,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\S
LI

N
GS

HO
_P

R\
T6

21
16

61
4\

CA
D\

C3
D\

Sh
ee

ts
\L

2.
0 

SI
TE

 D
ET

AI
LS

.d
w

g 
11

/1
/2

01
8 

3:
46

:1
9 

PM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

REVISION DATENO.

R

309 E 5TH STREET,  SUITE 202
DES MOINES, IOWA  50309

Phone: (515) 259-9190
Email: DesMoines@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.com

COLLEGE HILL
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SJK

NMW

SJK

XXXXXXXXXX
SITE DETAILS

© Bolton & Menk, Inc. 2018, All Rights Reserved

L2.0

H:\SLINGSHO_PR\T62116614\CAD\C3D\Sheets\L2.0 SITE DETAILS.dwg 11/1/2018 3:44 PM

42



SCALE: N.T.S.

1

TYPICAL SECTION: TREE GRATE

15'x12' STRUCTURAL SOIL EXTENTS

WOOD MULCH (3" DEPTH) (INCIDENTAL)

GRATE FRAME SET IN CONCRETE PER

MANUFACTUER RECOMMENDATIONS

6" X 12" CONCRETE EDGE

REINSTALL SALVAGED

TREE GRATE

NYLON STRAP, 2 PER TREE

(AS NECESSARY)

OVERSTORY TREE

SET BALL ON COMPACTED SOIL

PEDESTAL

STRUCTURAL SOIL

NATURAL SUBGRADE

1. CONTRACTOR TO SALVAGE AND REINSTALL TREE GRATES ON COLLEGE AVE OR
INSTALL NEW TREE GRATES TO MATCH EXISTING SIZE AND STYLE

2. REFER TO MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS FOR INSTALLATION DETAILS
3. EACH NEW TREE PIT SHALL CONTAIN APPROXIMATELY 17 CY OF STRUCTURAL SOIL

(15'x12'x2.5' DEEP)

TREE GRATE PLANTING NOTES:

2'
-6

"

SET PLANT SO THE ROOT FLARE IS AT THE

FINISHED SOIL ELEVATION

COLLEGE STREET PAVERS ON

CONCRETE SUBBASE

2

SCALE: N.T.S.

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

SCALE: N.T.S.

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AMENDED SOIL, AS SPECIFIED

REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF WIRE BASKET

AFTER TREE IS IN THE PIT

NYLON STRAP GUY

ASSEMBLY

STEEL POST NOTCHED OR

DRILLED FOR GUY WIRE

DO NOT CUT

LEADER

4" TREE TAPE ON DECIDUOUS

TREES

3" MULCH DEPTH, PULL BACK 4"

FROM TREE TRUNK

NOTE: SET TOP OF ROOT BALL

1" TO 2" ABOVE SURROUNDING

FINISH GRADE SO ROOT FLARE IS VISIBLE

REMOVE TWINE & PULL BURLAP

FROM TREE TRUNK

4'
-0

"
PO

ST
 H

EI
GH

T

3'
-0

"
GU

Y 
HE

IG
HT

2x ROOTBALLNOTES:
1. O.C. TRIANGULAR PLANT SPACING PER PLANS
2. AREAS IDENTIFIED ON PLANTING PLAN AS O.C.

SHALL BE TRIANGULAR SPACED
3. SEE PLANTING PLAN FOR SPECIES

2

SCALE: N.T.S.SCALE: N.T.S.

SHRUB/PERENNIAL BED PLANTING

3

SCALE: N.T.S.

PERENNIAL PLANT SPACING

SCALE: N.T.S.

AMENDED SOIL, AS SPECIFIED

PROVIDE 3" DEEP SAUCER AT EACH SHRUB

3" DEPTH MULCH ((INCIDENTAL) AS

SPECIFIED, KEEP MULCH CLEAR OF TRUNK

AS SHOWN

12
"

2x ROOT BALL DIAMETER
O.C. SPACING PER PLANS

1'-0"

DEPTH AS SPECIFIED

SCALE: N.T.S.

5

PLANTING EDGE AT EXISTING CONC. WALK

HARDWOOD MULCH

3" DEPTH

AMENDED SOIL, AS SPECIFIED

HAND DUG TRENCH AT WALK

EDGE

3"

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

8,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\S
LI

N
GS

HO
_P

R\
T6

21
16

61
4\

CA
D\

C3
D\

Sh
ee

ts
\L

2.
0 

SI
TE

 D
ET

AI
LS

.d
w

g 
11

/1
/2

01
8 

3:
46

:2
1 

PM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

REVISION DATENO.

R

309 E 5TH STREET,  SUITE 202
DES MOINES, IOWA  50309

Phone: (515) 259-9190
Email: DesMoines@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.com

COLLEGE HILL
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SJK

NMW

SJK

XXXXXXXXXX
LANDSCAPE DETAILS

© Bolton & Menk, Inc. 2018, All Rights Reserved

L2.1

H:\SLINGSHO_PR\T62116614\CAD\C3D\Sheets\L2.0 SITE DETAILS.dwg 11/1/2018 3:44 PM

1. PRIOR TO DIGGING, IT IS REQUIRED BY LAW TO CALL IOWA ONE CALL FOR UTILITY
LOCATIONS.

2. MASTER PLANT SCHEDULE: ALL TREES, PERENNIALS AND SHRUBS ARE LISTED IN THE
MASTER PLANT SCHEDULE.  IF THERE IS A CONFLICT BETWEEN THE QUANTITIES
SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS AND THE QUANTITIES SHOWN IN THE PLANT SCHEDULE,
THE PLAN QUANTITIES SHALL PREVAIL.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND VERIFY ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITY LINES
AND SHALL COORDINATE LOCATIONS OF PROPOSED LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS.
CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES AND/OR CONFLICTS TO LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.

4. ALL PLANT MATERIALS MUST CONFORM TO AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY
STOCK (A.N.S.I. Z60.1)  LATEST EDITION PUBLISHED BY THE AMERICAN NURSERY AND
LANDSCAPE ASSOCIATION, WASHINGTON D.C.

9. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS AND
MATERIALS INJURIOUS TO PLANT GROWTH FROM PLANTING PITS AND BEDS PRIOR TO
BACKFILLING WITH PLANTING SOIL.

10. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GUARANTEED TO BE IN A LIVE AND HEALTHY
GROWING CONDITION FOR ONE FULL GROWING SEASON (ONE YEAR) AFTER FINAL
PROJECT ACCEPTANCE OR IT SHALL BE REPLACED FREE OF CHARGE WITH THE SAME
GRADE AND SPECIES.

11. PLANTING LAYOUT: STAKE ALL TREE LOCATIONS AND A TYPICAL PERENNIAL BED
LAYOUT AND OBTAIN APPROVAL OF THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO
PLANTING.

12. PERENNIAL GROUPINGS SHALL BE PLANTED AND MULCHED IN ONE CONTINUOUSLY
MULCHED BED.

13. AMENDED SOIL MIX AND SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO
THE PLANTING BID ITEMS AND SHALL MEET THE FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS:

MULCH:
A.  FINELY SHREDDED OR PROCESSED HARDWOOD BARK GRADED FROM 0.25 IN. - 0.5

IN. DIAMETER AND A MAX. OF 3 IN. IN LENGTH.
B.  GREEN OR FRESHLY CHIPPED OR SHREDDED MULCH SHALL BE REJECTED.
C.  MULCH TO BE FREE OF WEEDS, WEED SEED, CHAFF, DISEASES, OR OTHER FOREIGN

MATERIAL.

AMENDED SOIL:
A.  EXCAVATION SOIL FROM GRADING, TRENCHING, OR CLEARING SHALL NOT BE USED

IN MAKING AMENDED SOIL.
B.  AMENDED SOIL MIX SHALL MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS:

1.1. TOPSOIL: WELL COMPOSTED, STABLE AND WEED-FREE ORGANIC MATTER, pH
RANGE 5.5 TO 7; MOISTURE CONTENT 35 TO 55% BY WEIGHT, 100% PASSING
THROUGH 1" SIEVE: SOLUBLE SALT CONTENT OF 2.5 DECISIEMENS/M: NOT
EXCEEDING 0.5% INERT CONTAMINANTS AND FREE OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES.

1.2. ORGANIC MATTER: A PRODUCT OF PEAT MOSS, COMPOST OR LOCALLY
AVAILABLE ORGANIC WASTE. ORGANIC MATTER SHOULD BE FREE FROM
DEBRIS, WEED SEEDS AND INSECTS OR DISEASES WHICH MAY BE HARMFUL TO
INTENDED PLANTINGS.

1.3. SAND: CONCRETE SAND, HAVING A FINENESS MODULUS (FM) BETWEEN 1.8
AND 2.5.

C. CONTRACTOR TO BLEND TOPSOIL, ORGANIC MATTER AND SAND IN THE
FOLLOWING RATIOS TO FORM AMENDED SOIL MIXTURE:

8" TOPSOIL
3" ORGANIC MATTER
1" SAND MIXTURE

AMENDED SOIL TO BE WELL-TILLED TO A DEPTH OF 8".

PLANTING NOTES

43



COLLEGE HILL
CORNER OF COLLEGE AND 22ND 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/1/1844



COLLEGE HILL
FRONT VIEW 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/1/1845



COLLEGE HILL
COLLEGE STREET VIEW 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/1/1846



COLLEGE HILL
COLLEGE RESIDENTIAL ENTRY 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/1/1847



COLLEGE HILL
ELEVATIONS 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/1/18

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

B A

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

B A

2

4

13

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

A B B B B

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

B A B B B A

(1) EAST ELEVATION

(3) WEST ELEVATIONKEY PLAN (4) NORTH ELEVATION

(2) SOUTH ELEVATION METAL PANEL - 50%
BRICK - 33%

OPENINGS - 17%

METAL PANEL - 52%
BRICK - 24%

OPENINGS - 24%

METAL PANEL - 50%
BRICK - 32%

OPENINGS - 18%

METAL PANEL - 30%
BRICK - 47%

OPENINGS - 23%

(A) METAL PANEL (B) METAL PANEL BRICK BRICK DETAILING

48



COLLEGE HILL
FLOOR LEVELS 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/1/18

STUDIO 01
495 SF

STUDIO 03
447 SF

STUDIO 02
466 SF

4 BR
1,223 SF

2 BR
1,049 SF

STUDIO 04
500 SF

STUDIO 02
466 SF

STUDIO 02
466 SF

APARTMENT RENTABLE SQURE FOOTAGE

UNIT TYPE QTY. UNIT SQ FT. TOTAL SQ 
FT.

STUDIO 01 4 495 1,980

STUDIO 02 12 466 5,592

STUDIO 03 4 447 1,788

STUDIO 04 3 500 1,500

2 BEDROOM 4 1,049 4,196

4 BEDROOM 4 1,223 4,892

TOTAL 31 19,948

TOTAL BEDS 47

ON-SITE 

PARKING

        47 (2 ACCESSIBLE STALLS)

�1

AMENITY
SPACE 1

STUDIO 01
495 SF

STUDIO 03
447 SF

STUDIO 02
466 SF

4 BR
1,223 SF

2 BR
1,049 SF

AMENITY
373 SF

STUDIO 02
466 SF

STUDIO 02
466 SF

LOBBY

COLAB BREWERY

GROSS FLOOR AREA

LEVEL 1 RETAIL 5,084

LEVEL 1 LOBBY 551

LEVEL 2-5 RESIDENTIAL 19,948

LEVEL 5 AMENITY SPACE 373

TOTAL 25,956

�1

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"

RESIDENTIAL 2-4 FLOORS

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"

RESIDENTIAL 5 FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"

RETAIL 1 FLOOR

LEGEND

RESIDENTIAL UNITS

CIRCULATION

RETAIL/AMENITY

49



COLLEGE HILL
SITE PARKING 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/2/18

11

5

9

PARKING
(47 STALLS)

10

5

TRASH
BIKE

7

LOBBY

COLAB BREWERY

N

SCALE: 1"   = 30'

GROUND LEVEL PARKING PLAN

50



COLLEGE HILL
TRASH ENCLOSURE 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/6/18

11'-5 1/4"

3
A.201

1

2

3

16'-9 1/4"

8
'-

0
"

(3) NORTH ELEVATIONTRASH ENCLOSURE PLAN

(2) EAST/WEST ELEVATION(1) SOUTH ELEVATION

BRICK(A) METAL PANEL

51



COLLEGE HILL
STREET SECTION 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/2/1852



COLLEGE HILL
ELEVATION STUDY 

COLLEGE HILL  //  11/2/18

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

B A B B B A 61'-6"

53



 

2018.11.06 

David Sturch 
City of Cedar Falls  
Planning and Community Services 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

RE: College Hill Project - Exterior Building Lighting  

David: 

In follow up to the staff comments on the project, we also wanted to provide a narrative for the exterior lighting 
design of the project.  Two primary strategies will be implemented and are described below. 

First, the face of the building that fronts the public street to the east will be washed with vertical, narrow beam 
sconces as well as the residential entry on the west.  The intent is to light up these active faces of the building to add 
to the character and safety of the neighborhood.  By washing the surfaces of the building, the masonry materiality of 
the building will be highlighted without producing light spill on to other properties. 

For the parking areas, the goal will be to provide safety without producing unnecessary light spilling on to other 
properties or shining into any residential windows of neighboring properties. All site lighting of the parking lot will 
meet minimum requirements and limit the light levels at the property line to a maximum of 1 foot candle. 

Cut sheets for each lighting types described above are attached for reference. 

Please let us know if you have any questions on the items above. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

Dan Drendel, AIA 
Slingshot Architecture 

S L I N G S H O T A R C H I T E C T U R E . C O M 
305  EAST COURT AVE, DES MOINES, IA 50309  
T  515-243-0074  

                of  1 1
54


	Top
	1. Minutes
	11-14-2018 PZ Minutes - final.docx

	2. Rezoning – From A-1, Agricultural District to R-1, Residence District
	1. PZ staff Report for Prairie West II Rezoning.docx
	2. ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3.. 5722 Rezoning Exhibit.pdf
	4. Cover Letter.docx

	3. CBD- Design Review: Tea Cellar
	1. PZ staff report - 209 State Street.docx
	2. Letter of intent.pdf

	4. Planned Commercial District (PC-2) Site Plan Review: 936 Viking Outbuilding #1
	1_Gym Outbuilding #1 Site Plan Review Staff Report to P&amp;Z on 11-28-18.docx
	2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3_Overall Site Layout.pdf
	4_936 Viking Rd Site Plan.pdf
	5_Building Plans.pdf
	6_Landscape Plan.pdf

	5. CBD- Site Plan Review: 2119 College Street
	1_Staff report for site plan review at 2119 College Street on 11-14-18.docx
	2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3_2018.11.01 COL - P+Z Resubmittal.pdf
	4_2018.11.02 COL - Supplemental Information.pdf
	5_2018.11.06 - COL - College Hill Exterior Lighting.pdf

	Bottom

